TEWKSBURY SCHOOL COMMITTEE
139 Pleasant Street, Tewksbury, MA 01876
Notice of Meeting - Public Session

DATE: Wednesday, luly 9, 2025 at 5:30 PM
MEETING(s): Tewksbury School Committee
Regular School Committee Meeting

LOCATION: Center Elementary School - Cafeteria
139 Pleasant Street, Tewksbury, MA 01876

1. Call To Order

2. Pledge Aliegiance
3. Announcement*

4. Recognitions
None

5. Student Council Representative Report
No summer report

6. Presentations
a. Status of Al Framework: Al Guidance
b. Student Voice and Choice Survey
7. Citizens Forum*
8. Approval Of Minutes - Vote
a. June 10, 2025 Regular Business Meeting
b. June 11, 2025 Special School Committee Meeting
9. Submission And Payment Of Bills - Vote
Payroll Period Ending, June 5, 2025 Balloon Payroll, $777,522.10
Payroll Period Ending, June 18, 2025, $1,638,315.97
Payroll Period Ending, July 3, 2025, $1,737,094.90
10. Superintendent & Staff Report

11. Correspondence & Informational Topics (Pg 3)

12. Consent Agenda (Pg 3) - Vote

SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Bridget Garabedian, Chair baarabedian@:ewksburvk12.ma.us ~ Kayla Biagioni-Smith, Vice Chair kbiagioni-smith@tewksbury.k12.ma.us
Jamey Cutelis, Clerk [cutalis@tewksburyk12.ma.us ~ Chris Moncada, Member cmoncada@tewksburyk12.ma.us

Kaitlyn Anderson, Member kmanderson@iewksbury k12.ma.us

Superintendent of Schools - Brenda Theriault-Regan breqan@tewksbury.k12.ma.us




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

School Committee Member Reports

Tewksbury SEPAC

Wellness Advisory Committee

Tewksbury School Facility Study Committee (TSFSC)
Policy Sub-Committee

Policy Changes, Proposals & Adoption
Policies reviewed and recommended to revise - Informational reading - None

Policies reviewed and recommended to revise - First reading - None

Policies reviewed and recommended to revise - Second and Final reading - Vote
GBEB, Staff Conduct; IHBF, Homebound Instruction

Old Business
a. Enrollment Update
b. FY25 Quarter 4 Year-To-Date Expenditure Summary

New Business

a. Al Guidance - Vote

b. Non-Union Salaried Personnel Increase - Vote

c. 2025 MASC Appointment Voting Delegate - Vote
d. 2025-2026 Student Handbooks - Vote

o PK-4 Elementary Schools

o John Ryan Elementary School

o John Wynn Midd!e School

o Tewksbury Memorial High School

New School Committee Matters of Interest

Future School Committee Meeting Dates

August 13, 2025 School Committee Admin Retreat/Workshop, Goals Workshop and Regular School

Committee Meeting

Future Sub-Committee & Advisory Committee Meeting Dates
TSEPAC Business Meeting:

Wellness Advisory Committee:

Policy Sub-Committee: TBD

Tewksbury School Facility Study Committee:

Future Agenda Items
Executive Session - Non-Public Session
o Approval of Executive Session Minutes

o Collective Bargaining Pertaining to the TTA Bargaining Unit

Adjournment

2
July 9, 2025 Regular School Committee Meeting #1



Correspondence & Informational Topics
a. Wynn Middle School:

e Drama Club: Massachusetts Educational Theater Guild Musical Theater Awards: 2025 Best Prop
Design for The Lightning Thief

e Drama Club: Massachusetts Educational Theater Guild Middle School Festival: 2025 Gold Medal
for the performance of Attack! of the Killer Man from the Sun!
Intermediate Math League: Wynn Math Team First Place Ramanujan Division.

e Greater Lowell Regional Knowledge Bowl: Third Place

Consent Agenda

Personnel Items

New Hires: Chelsea Bevilacqua, Education Support Personnel Aide, Dewing School, effective August 25, 2025;
Patrick Borzi, Math Teacher at Tewksbury Memorial High School, effective August 25, 2025; Kathleen Brown,
1-year-only Literacy Teacher at the Ryan School, effective August 25, 2025; Alyssa Cappiello, Integrated Preschool
Teacher at the Heath Brook School, effective August 25, 2025; Julia Caselden, Music Teacher at the Ryan School;
Kristine Harvey, Districtwide Education Support Personnel Aide in the role of Registered Behavior Technician, at
the Dewing School effective August 25, 2025; Zuliannie Martinez Acevedo, Education Support Personnel Aide, at
the Dewing School, effective August 25, 2025; Tracy Torra, Education Support Personnel Aide assigned to DLC
Preschool at the Dewing School, effective August 25, 2025

Transfers: Natalee Bushen transfer from the position of Education Support Personnel Aide at the Heath Brook
School to the position of Education Support Personnel Aide at the Dewing School, effective August 25, 2025;
Suzanne Caliendo transfer from the position of Business Office Clerk/Payroll Specialist at the District Office to
Executive Secretary to the Superintendent’s Office and School Committee, effective July 1, 2025; Eileen Osborne
transfer from the position of Acting TMHS Assistant Principal/Assistant Business Manager to the position of
TIMHS Assistant Principal, effective July 1, 2025; Laura Rainsford transfer from the position of Grade 2 Teacher at
the Center School to the position of Grade 1 Teacher at the Heath Brook School, effective August 25, 2025; Vance
Winchell transfer from the position of Digital Literacy Teacher at the Dewing and Hearth Brook Schools to the
position of Grade 3 Teacher at the Center School, effective August 25, 2025

Reappointments - None
Retirements - None

Appendix B 2025-2026 Co-Curricular Activities
o TMHS Co-Curricular Activities, PLC’s, and Intramural Directors
Jlohn Wynn Middle School Appendix B Positions
lohn Ryan School Appendix B Positions
Center Elementary School Appendix B Positions
Dewing School Appendix B Positions
Heath Brook School Appendix B Positions
Districtwide Appendix B Positions

O 0O O O O O

Donations: Debbie Whiting, Leonard’s Music of Bedford, MA, donated a Jupiter JBC 1000NP Bass Clarinet for the
music program at the Ryan Elementary School, valued at $4,149.00; Donation of a Jupiter Trumpet to the Ryan
Music Program from Dale Baker, valued in the amount of $150.00; Donation totaling $2,000 to the TMHS
Robotics Team from BAE Systems.

Raffles - None

3
July 9, 2025 Regular School Committee Meeting #1



*ANNOUNCEMENT: The July 9, 2025 Regular School Committee Meeting will be televised and recorded and may
be viewed live on Comcast Channel 22 and Verizon Channel 34 or YouTube.com/TewksburyTV. Under the Open
Meeting Law, the public is permitted to make an audio or video recording of an open session at a public meeting.
At this time, | would ask if anyone is recording tonight’s meeting to please identify himself or herself.

*PUBLIC COMMENT: Speakers will be allowed three (3) minutes to present their material. Large groups
addressing the same topic are encouraged to consolidate their remarks and/or select a spokesperson to speak on
the groups' behalf. If you require accommodations on the basis of a disability or require language interpretation
assistance please notify the Superintendent's office in advance of the meeting date.

4
July 9, 2025 Regular School Committee Meeting #1



Recognitions

Presentations



Tewksbury School Committee

July 9, 2025 - Presentation
Status of Al Framework: Al Guidance

Presented by: Jason Stamp



Guidance on the Use of Generative Al in the
Tewksbury Public Schools’

Table of Contents

1. Purpose

Scope

Guiding Principles for Al Use

Benefits of Generative Al Tools

Responsible Use of Al Tools

Prohibited Use of Al Tools

Special Consideration: Advancing Academic Integrity
Special Consideration: Safety. Security. Privacy
Review

©oNOOORWDN

Purpose

This document guides our students, staff, and school communities on the appropriate and
responsible use of artificial intelligence (Al), particularly generative Al tools, in classroom
instruction, school management, and systemwide operations. Generative Al has potential
benefits for education and risks that must be thoughtfully managed.

Artificial intelligence refers to computer systems that are taught to automate tasks normally
requiring human intelligence. This is made possible through "machine learning," a subset of Al
where computers learn from data without being explicitly programmed for a specific task. Think
of it as teaching a computer to be creative based on examples it has seen. While generative Al
tools show great promise and often make useful suggestions, they are designed to predict what
is right, which isn't always right. As a result, their output can be inaccurate, misleading, or
incomplete.

All use of Al should follow our current Acceptable Use Procedures and academic integrity as
noted in applicable Student Handbooks.

Scope

This guidance applies to all students, teachers, staff, administrators, and third parties who
develop, implement, or interact with Al technologies used in our education system. It covers all
Al systems used for education, administration, and operations, including, but not limited to,
generative Al models, intelligent tutoring systems, conversational agents, automation software,
and analytics tools. This guidance complements existing policies on technology use, data
protection, academic integrity, and student support.

! Inspired by Teach Al School District toolkit, This document was developed with the assistance of
chatbots to support clarity and public accessibility.



Guiding Principles for Generative Al Use

We commit to implementing these principles through internal procedures:

1.

Educational Advancement: We'll use Al to enhance learning outcomes, teaching
effectiveness, and operations while ensuring equitable access and addressing potential
biases.

Policy Compliance: All Al use will align with existing regulations including, but not
limited to the privacy, accessibility, harassment/bullying, and content safety policies.

Al Literacy: We are committed to developing staff and student understanding of Al
capabilities, appropriate use cases, and foundational concepts, supporting teachers as
they adapt instruction.

Balanced Approach: We'll maximize Al benefits while addressing risks, particularly
misinformation and bias, through ongoing evaluation.

Academic Integrity: We maintain standards of honesty and responsibility, requiring
proper attribution of Al-assisted work and authentic student contributions.

User Agency: While Al may inform decisions, staff and students will maintain critical
oversight and accountability in all academic and organizational processes.
Continuous Oversight: Conduct regular audits and evaluations of Al advances and
implementation, with frequent policy updates to keep pace with rapidly evolving
technology.

Benefits of Generative Al Tools

Our school system acknowledges that Generative Al's benefits depend on context, such as
specific classroom activities or assignments. Below are examples aligned with educational

goals.

Student Learning

Creativity: Students can harness generative Al to spark creativity

Collaboration: Generative Al supports group work such as assigning tasks/roles,
generating ideas, assisting with research, and connecting information.
Communication: Tools offer translation, tailored language practice, and conversation
simulations.

Content Support: Generative Al creates custom study aids like summaries, quizzes,
and visuals, and helps students organize and review content.

Tutoring: Generative Al enables accessible, personalized learning through virtual
assistants that support homework, answer questions, and enhance instruction.

Teacher Support

Assessment: Generative Al can help design questions, give feedback, run diagnostics,
and support performance assessments—while teachers remain responsible for final
evaluation and grading.



Content & Differentiation: Generative Al supports differentiated instruction by
suggesting lessons, generating visuals, and customizing practice based on student
needs.

Professional Development: Generative Al offers strategy recommendations,
personalized learning, cross-curricular project ideas, and simulations for training.
Research Support: Generative Al suggests relevant resources and keeps teachers
updated on current methods and research.

School Management and Operations

Communications: Generative Al aids in drafting messages, answering routine
questions via chatbots, and translating languages instantly.

Operational Efficiency: Generative Al streamlines school operation tasks such as
Scheduling.

Learning Management: Generative Al analyzes student data to help educators
personalize instruction and support.

Responsible Use

Ethical Use and Compliance: The use of Al tools must comply with all relevant laws,
district policies, and current DESE Guidance.

Transparency and Accountability: When Al is used to generate content and/or
materials, it is important to communicate when and how it is being used. Ensure that Al
applications are used to complement, not replace, user judgment and interaction.

Data Privacy and Security: The use of Generative Al must prioritize data privacy and
security as outlined in the Acceptable Use Policy.

Prohibited Use of Al Tools in Our Schools

All users are expected to employ Generative Al tools solely for educational purposes, upholding
values of respect, inclusivity, and academic integrity at all times.

As we explore how Al can support learning, it's important to stay aware of the risks. Below are
ways Al tools should not be used. The examples below include but are not limited to ways
Generative Al may be misused.

For Student Learning

Bullying or Harassment: Using Al to impersonate, threaten, or harass others (like
through fake images or messages) is not allowed. All Al use must reflect respect,
inclusion, and haonesty.

Over Reliance on Generative Al: Generative Al can miss important details or
misunderstand context and may include bias. Everyone should carefully review
Al-generated work before using it. No content developed by Generative Al should be




used without being reviewed for accuracy, context, and perspective. Itis also
recommended that other sources be considered.
e Plagiarism or Cheating
o Students and staff must not copy Al-generated content and present it as their
own.
o Al use should be properly cited when allowed.
o Teachers will design assignments that encourage original thinking and reduce the
chances of plagiarism.
o School rules on academic honesty still apply.
e Ensure Equal Access: If Al tools are part of an assignment, schools will provide access
for all students—not just those with personal access outside of school.

For Teacher Support

e Clear Guidelines from Teachers
Teachers will explain when and how Al can be used, with input from students and
families. Al use must follow privacy and data protection laws.
¢ Addressing Societal Bias
Al is trained on human data, which may contain unfair biases.
o Students and staff will learn about these risks.
o All Al tools will be checked for fairness and transparency.
o Human review is required before using Al-generated content.
o Keeping Educators Central
Al should help—not replace—teachers.
Teaching, mentoring, and grading will always be led by real educators.
o Al tools are just that—tools. Final decisions remain with humans.
e Respecting Privacy in the Classroom: Al will not be used to monitor classrooms, track
movements, or record teacher-student interactions. Surveillance of this kind is not
permitted. Student Pl should not be included in generative Al that stores information.

For School Operations

e Protecting Privacy: Al must not collect or misuse student or teacher data. All tools must
follow privacy laws and the district's ethical standards.

e Following Existing Policies: Al tools will be reviewed to make sure they meet legal and
policy requirements. Tools must clearly explain how (if at all) they use personal data.

Review

This guidance will be reviewed annually, or sooner, to ensure it continues to meet the school’s
needs and complies with changes in laws, regulations, and technology. We welcome feedback
on this guidance and its effectiveness as Al usage evolves.

[Last updated: 05/15/2025]



Tewksbury School Committee

July 9, 2025 - Presentation
Student Voice and Choice Survey

Presented by: John Weir



s|geHojwo? |ieje JIoN @
a|qenojwod AsA JoN @
3|qepojwoo jeymswos @
8|qeuojwod Alsp @

sasuodsal Qg
¢SSe|J Ul seoapl 1noA mc_‘_mcw EE] noA Oop 2|geliojuod MOH
'S9sse|0 Inok lnoge seapl pue .®>_wowamhwa .mCO_C_QO inoA mc:mcw 0] solke|al siy] - 93I0A | 14Vd

S1InsSay ASAINS 1BBA-JO-puUT uekY



3jqenojwod |eje 10N @
a|qeuojwoo Aiaa JoN @
9|qeHojwod jleymawos @
s|qepojwoo Alsp @

sasuodsal Off
¢ SSe|J Ul seeapl InoA mc_‘_mcw |93} noA Op 9|geliojwod MOH
‘S9SSe|0 InoA 1noge seopl pue .o>:.owaw._mn_ .wCO_C_QO oA mc:mcw 0] Salej|al SIy] - 30I0A | 1¥Vvd

S NsSay ASAINS JBBA-JO-pUT UUAMA



JarnoN @
Alosey @&
sawnswos @

shemy @

sasuodsal £z
¢s1ayoeal Jnok Ag panjea ase suoluido InoA |98} nok oq /z

S}|nsay ASAINS 1eBA-JO-puT uehy



lonaN @ ‘

Koy @
sownewos @

sfemiy @

sasuodsal Oyt

¢slayoeal JnoAk g panjea ale suoluido JnoA |93} hok oq /2

S}INS9y ASAINS JBBA-JO-pUT UUAM




Auesy @
sawnswos O
usyo @
sfemy @

sasuodsal g2y

culed| noA yeym uo spybnoyy 1noA aseys o} 186 nok op ualyyo moH /¢

s}insay AAINS JeaA-JO-pug ueAY



Auesy @
sewnewos M
usyyo @
sfemy @

sasuodsal Oy

cuiea] noA 1eym uo siybnoyy inoA ateys 01 196 noA op usyo moH /g

s1insay ASAINS JBBA-JO-pUT UUANA




ON .
AjleasjoN &
sswnaswos @

Ai@yuyep ‘'sep @

sasuodsal €21
tmw\h SIYy] sse|O ul 0] paualsi| olom suoluido pue seapl InoA =) [TREE] noA oq /vy

S1Insay ASAINS 1B9A-JO-pug ueky



ON @
AjlealjoN &
sawjpwos @

Alsluyap ‘'ssp @

sasuodsal Gey
iieak SIY]l sse|d Ul 0] pauei]s]| alom suotuido pue seapl InoA )| |93} nok oqQ /v

S1INSay ASAINS JBBA-JO-PUT UUAM



larsN @
Ajpiey @&
sawpnswos @

uayo .

sasuodsal | Z{
wmc_chmm_ JO .wm_:._ ‘salllAllOe SSE|D0 U0 Xoegpos) w>_m 0} noA 10} sadueyod alayl aloM /9

s1nsay ASAING JeaA-J0-pul uely




lonsN @
Alaiey @&
sswfswos @
uslyo @

sasuodsal /Ef

¢Buluies| 1o ‘sajnl ‘salliAloe SSe(o Uo yorgpaay) aAlb 0} noA Jo) saoueyd alayl 319 /S

S1iNsay ABAINS JBBA-JO-PUT UUAM



anoge ayy jo IV @

Bujuies| Aw jo pnoid @

sybnoyy Aw Buueys sjgepojwod &
Sysu aye) 0) pabeinoouz @
Jsyoes) Aw Aq papoddng @

sosuodsal gL

‘H34 | yeal syl /9

s1nsay ASAINS JBBA-J0-puU] ueAY



anoge syl jo I @
Bujuies| Aw jo pnoid @

siybnouy Aw Buueys sigepojwod &
sysu aye} 0} pabeinoouy @
Jayoea) Aw Aq psuoddns @

sasuodsal gZ

9y | yesh syl /9

synsay AsAINS JBBA-JO-puUT UUAM




1oAeN @
uayo A1eA JoN &

sawnawos @
ove

sasuodsal £z

ipauled] NOA 1eYyM MOYS JO uled| 0] paluem NoA Moy "ea| aANOA 1eym aleys NoA Moy pue ‘Inoge uies| ol
JUBM NoA jeym ‘ules] 0] Juem NoA moy uo apioap 0} 196 noA yonw moy saiejal siy] :@210yd :Z 1HVd

épaules] NoA Jeym Moys 0} MOY 10 UJes| 0} pajuem noA Moy asooy? 0} 386 NoA pIp ualo MOH /2
S}iNSay >w>._3m Jead A-JO-pu3 Cm>m_




lansN @
uayo Asa JoN @

sawinswog @

oy @

sasuodsal oy
¢paules| nok 1eyM MOUS 10 uleg| 0] pajuem NoA MOY "B w>_:o> 1eyMm aleys noA MOY pue ‘noge uies| 0}

Juem noA 1eym ‘uies| 0] JUBM NOA Moy uo apioap 0} 186 noA yonw moy saieal siy] :9210y) :Z 14vd

épauleaj NoA Jeym Moys 0} Moy Jo uiea] o0} pajuem nok moy asooyd 0} 3ab noA pip uayo moH /2

s}Insay ADAING JBBA-JO-puUT UUAM




uondo auo sajeud | 'OoN &

sswnawos @
Aisnuyep ‘seA @

sasuodsal €2
¢swawubisse 1noA ul suoinldo buiaey 1ajeid nok oq /8

s}jnsay ABAINS 1BBA-JO-pug ueAY



uondo auo Jajaid | ‘oN @&

sawljawos @
Aisyuyap ‘ssA @

sasuodsal gyt

¢swawubisse 1noA ul suondo buiaey tayaid nok og /8

S1INSay ASAINS JBBA-JO-puU] UUAM



SUOI103UUO0D 8)l|-|ead apirold pue saded BulkieA 18 }Jom Oym S1UDPNIS 104 UOIIRBIIUSIDMIP J91eal)
‘suolie|ndod asIaAIp pue sainyno ||e 91elgo|e)

Buneas a|qixa|} pue ‘suoipiod pue s82104d Yyoun| ‘Swoolyied Jo sssuljues|d arosdw

syealq

1oop1No pue S)ealq JuswaAow 1o} saijuniioddo pasealour Yim sawill ssaoal pue youn| Jabuoj apiroid
"sanss| Jo sodA] 9soy) aAjosal 01 sdnoub Jajjews ul Yiom

0} sjuapnis 40} sanunlioddo apiaold pue Joiaeysq alelidoiddeus pue buikjjng o0} sasuodsail 1abuouis apirold
SaNSs|

Jaad Jo Ajwey ‘ssans ‘fQ1vixue se yons sa|b6n11s aoualadxa oym Suspnis 1oy Jiels pue poddns aiow spIA0Id
(sdnoub aanesadood ‘sisunied) sbuidnoib pue

(]opow ‘moysapijs ‘1aisod) Bujuies) jo 1onpouid ‘(onsyisaury ‘Aloupne ‘jensia) buluies| jo ajfis ui suondo alo

9210/ '3 921049 IO [+

suollsan) AsAIng asuodsay uadQ wol) saway| :AsAINS AQ3 uely




s)xaju0o ajeudosdde ul wopaaly siow pue sand pibl sso °
suopnoe Aleu)dios|p pue sSuois|oap Woolsseo ul pJeay buleg °
sjewlo} buiuies| pue ‘sisuped ‘sjuswubisse uj aoloyy e
:ybnoiy) eousuBdxa |00YDS JIBY) Ul SoUBN|Ul PUE |OJJUCD SJoul Juem sjuspnis Aluouolny pue ‘@d1o0y) ‘@310A Juapnis ‘¢
Bujuies| o] seyoeoidde paseq-joefold ‘aAneasn e
uoneonpa |epuauadxa pue Bujuiesjjooping e
som paseg-leded pue ‘sqe| ‘SaIJIAIJOB UO-SPUBH @
:pJemo) uononujsul Aeay-yos} ‘anissed woly Aeme Buirow uj jsalsiul buoss s) a1ey) Bujuies] pUOM-Ieay pue ‘Buibebug ‘uQ-spueH 'z
Ajje100s jo8uu09 0} swy pue sjuswabuesse Buijeas g|qixaly
uolejos] 8onpai 0) SaljAloe apim-opelb Jo apim-wea)] e
Bujulea) aAeioqe||09 pue ‘YJom Jouped ‘sjosfoid dnoig) e

:ybnouy} s1ead ypm yiom 0} seiiunpoddo pue uopoeISjUl BI0W SARID SsuepniS-BuiulesT] [e190S '§ 3AljeIoqe||0) °|

suollsany AsAINS asuodsay uadQ wouy saway] AeAINg AQF UUAM




S)Baiq YOBUS JO SLWIOOJ UMOP-|00D 8Yjj] Sad1joeld aAljeI0)soy o
soaoeds Bujules) a|gixsj pue ‘sseoal Buibebus aiow ‘swiy J00pINO ®
yJomawoy ss9] pue Aep ayj buunp syeaig °

‘BIA U)|eay [euonowa pue jejusw sjuapnjs jo poddns Jensq Joj ||ed Jesjo e si alay)

aojuejeg pue ‘s)yealg ‘ssau||dM 'S

|le Buowe joadsal [enjnwl pue SSaupuly paseasou; e
SSOUSIEME JBYOEBD) SI0W PUR SJUSPNJS SSOJOE Judwjeasy died e
sainseaw BulA|ng-pue jobuonyg e

:SOpNjoU} Jey} 81njnNd |00Yds JalY)eay e Joj paau ay) pajybiybiy sjuepniS JU3WIUOIIAUS SAISN|OU| pue ‘puly ‘iInjjoadsay ¢

suonsany AsAing asuodsay uadQ wol) sawsy | ASAINS AOTF UUAM




loineyaq BulAjjng-iiue syowold o) sayoeoidde jo A1aliea e dojoaag e
loineyaq Buifjng jjo peay o1 buluiea jeuoiiows
|e100S Jo) oddns ss899. pue S||I)S P|iNg 01 SUOSS|-UIW :SNJ0H WOOISWOH/AIOSIADY
9wy} Jejnalind ssold e 0} palejal
s1o9foid ajdiyjnw woly 8sooyo 0} SJUdpN1S 10} SYDaM 10 sAep ,9010yD Juspnis, 10|ld e
JUSWUOIIAUD WOO0ISSe|D
pue UoI1oNJISuUl ‘WNjNoLLIND 0} seyoeoldde aAIlSUSS-BWNEI] pUe ‘SJUBWSSaSSY
aAlewd)y ‘(buluiea 1o ubisaq |esIiaAlun) 1AN UO WUSWdO|aAS( |BUOISSBJOId  ©

:uol1eIaPISUO) ainin4 10} sdals 1XaN

S|00YdoS UUAM pue uely




Payroll



TEWKSBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Tewksbury, Massachusetts
6/5/2025 - Balloon Payroll

I move the School Department Payroll be approved and certified in the amounts and

categories as shown for a total amount of $777,522.10
GRANTS
$0.00 Early Childhood Grant
$0.00 Title | Grant
$0.00 Title Il Grant
$0.00 Title lil Grant
$721.60 Title IV Grant
$22,821.52 Special Ed 240 Grant
$0.00 ASOST Grant
$0.00 Innovation Pathways Grant
$0.00 SEL Grant
$0.00 ESSER Il Grant
$0.00 21st Century Enhancement
$0.00 Project Lead the Way
$0.00 Work Based Learning
REVOLVING ACCOUNTS
$0.00 Facilities
$0.00 Parking Fees
$0.00 Advisor Stipend
$0.00 TMHS Athletic Intramurals
$0.00 WYNN Athletic Intramurals
$0.00 Advisor Stipend- Ryan
$0.00 AP Proctoring
$0.00 Recreation
$0.00 Lunch Program
$0.00 Athletic Revolving
$0.00 Community Education Recreation
$0.00 Preschool
$0.00 School Rec Coverage
$0.00 Circuit Breaker Account
$0.00 Alphabest
$0.00 CES Club Fund
$23,543.12 SUB TOTAL - NON LEA FUNDS
LEA FUNDS

$753,978.98 2024-2025 School Department Account
$753,978.98 SUB TOTAL - LEA FUNDS

$777,522.10 TOTAL



TEWKSBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Tewksbury, Massachusetts
6/18/2025

I move the School Department Payroll be approved and certified in the amounts and

categories as shown for a total amount of

$0.00
$10,574.24
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$20,039.17
$0.00
$0.00
$1,058.37
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$3,122.10
$727.61
$3,695.28
$2,571.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$55,319.57
$0.00
$0.00
$27,515.11
$0.00
$0.00
$5,511.91

$130,134.36

$1,508,181.61

$1,508,181.61

$1,638,315.97

$1,638,315.97
GRANTS

Early Childhood Grant
Title | Grant

Title Il Grant

Title lll Grant

Title IV Grant

Special Ed 240 Grant
ASOST Grant

Innovation Pathways Grant
SEL Grant

ESSER Il Grant

21st Century Enhancement
Project Lead the Way
Work Based Learning

REVOLVING ACCOUNTS

Facilities

Parking Fees

Advisor Stipend

TMHS Athletic Intramurals
WYNN Athletic Intramurals
Advisor Stipend- Ryan

AP Proctoring

Recreation

Lunch Program

Athletic Revolving
Community Education Recreation
Preschool

School Rec Coverage
Circuit Breaker Account
Alphabest

CES Club Fund

SUB TOTAL - NON LEA FUNDS

LEA FUNDS

2024-2025 School Department Account
SUB TOTAL - LEA FUNDS

TOTAL



TEWKSBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Tewksbury, Massachusetts
7/3/2025

| move the School Department Payroli be approved and certified in the amounts and

categories as shown for a total amount of

$0.00
$10,350.24
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$24,599.17
$0.00
$798.25
$1,831.06
$0.00
$0.00
$1,804.00
$0.00

$17,594.04
$727.61
$11,490.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$18,576.24
$0.00
$0.00
$21,337.58
$0.00
$11,450.00
$2,473.41
$0.00

$123,031.60

$1,614,063.30
$1,614,063.30

$1,737,094.90

$1,737,094.90
GRANTS

Early Childhood Grant
Title | Grant

Title Il Grant

Title Il Grant

Title IV Grant

Special Ed 240 Grant
ASOST Grant

Innovation Pathways Grant
SEL Grant

ESSER Il Grant

21st Century Enhancement
Project Lead the Way
Work Based Learning

REVOLVING ACCOUNTS

Facilities

Parking Fees

Advisor Stipend

TMHS Athletic Intramurals
WYNN Athletic Intramurals
Advisor Stipend- Ryan

AP Proctoring

Recreation

Lunch Program

Athletic Revolving
Community Education Recreation
Preschool

School Rec Coverage
Circuit Breaker Account
Alphabest

CES Club Fund

SUB TOTAL - NON LEA FUNDS

LEA FUNDS

2024-2025 School Department Account
SUB TOTAL - LEA FUNDS

TOTAL



Superintendent/
Staff Reports



Correspondence

and

Informational Topics



7/1/25, 3:19 PM IMG-1190.jpg

THEATER
AWARDS

Best Props
Design

2025

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ogbi#inbox/FMfcgzQbfxbxXMrfZwgZspVmhDwtqPdB ?projector=1&messagePartld=0.1




7/1/25, 3:20 PM IMG-1191.jpg

INTERMEDIATE
MATH LEAGUE

=SS =Tl =

- RAMANUJAN DIVISION
2024-2025

S ooy 0T

TEWKSBURY WYNN
470 POINTS

FIRST PLACE

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzQbixbxXMrfZwgZspVmhDwtqPdB?projector=1 &messagePartld=0.2



7/1/25, 3:20 PM IMG-1192.jpg

MASSACHUSETTS
EDUCATIONAL
THEATER GUILD

Middle School Festival

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzQbfxbxXMrfZwgZspVmhDwtqPdB?projector=1 &messagePartid=0.3




7/1/25, 3:20 PM IMG-1193.jpg

ST
* g ¥
-')'-l C b

2025 Greater

Lowell RegolKnowled e B
THIRD PLACE - o

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ogbl#inbox/FMfcgzQbixbxXMrfZwgZspVmhDwtgPdB?projector=1&messagePartld=0.4

7



Policy



POLICY

Second and Final
Reading



7-9-2025 Second & Final Reading: Recommendation of the Policy Subcommittee to revise the policy
6-10-2025 First Reading: Recommendation of the Policy Subcommittee to revise the policy
5-21-2025 Information Reading: Recommendation of the Policy Subcommittee to revise the policy

File: GBEB - STAFF CONDUCT

All Tewksbury Public School staff members have a responsibility to familiarize themselves with and
abide by the laws and regulations of the State as these affect their work, the policies of the Tewksbury
School Commiittee, and the procedures designed to implement them. The required mandatory training
and review and the procedures designed to implement them.

In the area of personal conduct, the Committee expects that teachers and others will conduct themselves
in a manner that not only reflects credit to the school system but also sets forth a model worthy of
emulation by students.

All staff members will be expected to carry out their assigned responsibilities with conscientious
concern.

Essential to the success of ongoing school operations and the instructional program are the following
specific responsibilities, which will be required of all personnel:

1. Faithfulness and promptness in attendance at work.

2. Support and enforcement of policies of the Committee and their implementing procedures
and school rules in regard to students.

3. Diligence in submitting required reports promptly at the times specified.
4. Care and protection of school property.

oi Concern for and attention to their own and the school system's legal responsibility for the
safety and welfare of students, including the need to ensure that students are under supervision at
all times.

6. Due diligence in providing the appropriate school and grade level curriculum required to
their students in einsuring their academic success.

Adoption date: January 1996

Revised and Adopted October 23, 2013

Revised: December 6, 2017

LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. 71:37H; 264:11; 264:14

Reviewed & Revised:



7-9-2025: Second & Final Reading: Recommendation of the Policy Subcommittee to revise the policy
6-10-2025: First Reading: Recommendation of the Policy Subcommittee to revise the policy
5-21-2025 Informational Reading: Recommendation of the Policy Subcommittee to revise the policy.

File: THBF - HOMEBOUND INSTRUCTION

The schools may furnish homebound instruction to those students who must remain confined to the home or ina
hospital on a day or overnight basis (or any combination of both) for medical reasons and for a period of not less
than 14 school days in any school year. munﬁ:ﬁmﬂem&fﬂhmmmwﬂvwmm

: 3 : enrt- The instruction is designed to provide
maintenance in the ba51c academlc courses so that when a student returns to school hefshe they will not be at a
disadvantage because of the illness or the hospitalization.

To qualify for the program the student needs a written statement from a medical doctor requesting the homebound
instruction, stating the reasons why, and estimating the time the student will be out of school. This statement
needs to be sent to the Director of Student Services & Special Education.

Homebound instruction is offered in basic elementary subjects and in secondary subjects which do not require
laboratories and special equipment, subject in all cases to the availability of qualified teachers. Licensed
Fteachers shall be assigned to homebound instruction by the Superintendent or designee.

LEGAL REF: 603 CMR 28.03(3)(C)
Adopted: March 26, 2014
Reviewed & Revised:

SOURCE: MASC



Old Business



Tewksbury Public Schools

MEMORANDUM

To: School Committee Members

From: Brenda Theriault-Regan
Superintendent of Schools

Date: July 9, 2025

Re: Enroliment Update

This is an informational item only. No vote is required.

Please see the attached June 2025 enrollment report and classroom counts. This is
informational only, no vote is required.



Od 4" (13 oL 6 8 L 9 S 14 € 4 l | Ad

6£2¢ 8 Ll 68l bV €91 TLZ 992 8bT €STZ 092 0SZ  €0€ VST 1z 6sl SIVLOL
Si Sl SH © |ooyssaid
€0L 8 41! 68l LLL €9l (SH) TOOHOS HOIH
8€s el 992 37adIN NNAM
105 8vZ  €s¢ NVAY
o€ SLL zel £ MOO¥ud H1V3H
89¢ 6€L  6¢l 06 ONIM3Q
€l8 09 0SZ  €0€ ¥3INTOD
S1vioL o9d (4} 1 oL 6 8 L 9 S v € r4 b | Md TOOHIS

Sc0c-21-9 G20Z LINTINZ



1SIxa AeW Ss|aAs| opelh Jusiaylp Je sjuapnis alaym sasseo pg |e1oadg sajous(,

09¢ €65 89¢€ 10€
€C |WEIDOW'N]| € 8 J8PR0HIS "0 | OaMd KeueAniy S |Md1X3
uygno 0. D1a | €z MeounsaN| € 8 yws ‘W| 97aMd 100euvel 1y d1X3
8od ¥, [D71A| 2¢ jelpes's| g€ Jx4 BunoAd| Md WM W D1aMd
umi ‘W, | D1a| €2 | uosbinL's| ¢ 14 ueBii e | Md L Aosed " 1D1QAMd
cle 992 2174 €6¢ YoukT'r| /g | €¢ [pueessed| g (44 POOMMO0T T | Md 44 SSUH'W|  Md
prewdg d.| G llepuey 3, e IBH'S| ¢ uesauuld 3, | L7y j°14 10908 "W | Md
auolepy "W.| / ejooun ‘s,| g Ay $ | €2 | tomeuLv| g abueled v, | |/
eUUBN 'Y,| £ Ao M. g bbei4g,| ¢ b44 Quelr| ¢ £1s00 "1, | /M
ouaAlS ‘W.| 8 eysewey 0. 2 ueseyy .| 9 ounas r.| 9/g Keuoyey M.| ¢ 22 xnois "W| ¢ uosuIqoy "I, L
sopiobuep 1,| @ pJEIIneD M. 8// oW M| 9 weypood 'v,| 9/5 apnosues 's.| Z 22 oupeg | ¢ 6l 1akouInoy - L
SWEIIM “Ta o] siwed, | g/, ueAyr.| 9 eleuad 's.| 9/g wods 1. 7 Gz | wnooeA M| ¢ [ auop(eIS "M l siejbue 'y, 1
0z | epuens| ¢ ¥4 SIMHW| L 4 JOUAUM Y L
9 o] 2 18buudg 'H 2 6l sjuowel] l (54 aoud ]
22 uvoep 3| @ 22 Ainos "w| 2 12 BLEN®| 9 1z goyusd| g £z soud w| ¢ | g | ovewsw's| z | o2 ussiy 3|y yz | sioeosgrg| |
0c nesaeg | g €¢ #nod4l ) (114 JBIMZ NI 9 44 I1I8NaW L G f44 lajpeRYog Al {7 L2 [uosPPNT| 2 0c uojsped "y l I44 s8N '3 l
22 siewwey T| @ Z2 osnwely 'N| 7/ z2 AsunDd| g 6l youus 'yl g ¥4 uassies | 22 jeuds 0| g 6L oliaposg 1 €z s1abpoy "y L
€C poold'N| g 4 uoysuyor | 2 12 | uinwoen v| 9 6l gug| g Y4 ossng M| ¢ | 1z | Bordsy| ¢ Kemersoph M| LM
[74 uoubeg ‘D <] 0¢ | dwexseers-a| 0z adsaor| 9 [Wrd Asusa] G 12 oleqieg ‘W| 0g [emebuz-w| ¢ JojAel "y, M Aydmw ra|  4Y
22 aidsan 'W| @ 4 splemp3 0| / 4 AL o] 9 0e ouned 'N| ¢ 22 peiuod M| ¢ 1z | webbeL | gz 6l uolswen 'y| 4y 6l apaloD V| 4y
ez ceys'al @ 22 neapoyg ‘0| / 0z | wismozoiwr| g (4 uwain o g ¥4 ueyeed 1| ¢ €2 |piojsuey | ¢ 02 aoeIn 'H| 4y 61 sipeied 's| 4N
jord ewnpdiq 8 €2 1ejseN .l 12 oueuIoy Y 9 4 euonnd L [+ 22 subeo ‘9| ¢ 22 sougL| g 02 Aypenop v 4 6l yong M| 9
€z oueges'm| g | zg nesporg | 2 | g2 | wwesbew | g £Z smaw| s | ez sinoiezr| ¢ | gz | Aaws| z | 1e uopreay | 4Y | /L | veueieoo| Iy
ve ewol4L| g Fd eoN3a| 2 0z ysem's| 9 2 sueqoy g g e faseppg| ¢ | zz | paoms| z | 61 suono 's| 4y 6l ssuAy M| 4o
£z Aydingy “y Q rd uowis gl 2 61 fespuri'r| g 2e usyoD 'y [ e opaqd 's| (%4 fenes'r| ¢ Bl [bunox-undeis's| 4y 6l BINIUSA "D Y
(¥4 wem | 8 | €2 eleud's| , | 0z | uosmpuy | g 0C a0 g | zz wwst| ¢ | gz | Awea3s|l gz | Lz esoN’L| 49 | 0z | seuobed'v| 4y
wp| seysl | p1o |wo| seysy |pio|wo| seysl |[pis | | seysr | pio [wo| seyst [pao || seyor [profo| seysr pio | o | Jeys) | pio
SIPPIN UUApA uyor ueky 4 uyopr NTETE NEITEL wajg Jajuan Buimaqg 47 yooig yjeaH




Tewksbury Public Schools

MEMORANDUM

To: School Committee Members

From: Brenda Theriault-Regan
Superintendent of Schools

Date: July9, 2025

Re: Quarter 4 Year-To-Date Expenditure Summary

This is an informational item only. No vote is required.

Please see the attached Quarter 4 Year-To-Date Expenditure Summary. This is
informational only, no vote is required.



TEWKSBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL COMMITTEE

QUARTERLY

EXPENDITURE REPORT

THROUGH JUNE 2025 FOR FY2025

7/2/2025

FY 25 COST CENTER F;ﬁg;rtig Transfers ' ' zBsu‘::L“tSted Expended  Encumbered Ava?;flﬁ‘g':;;ce % USED
11 - Dewing 4525570 | $ (176000) $ 4349570 $ 4134235 § 1873 $ 213463 95%
13 - Heath Brook 3180138 $ 124000 $ 3304138 $ 3299545 § 5181  § (588)| 100%
14 - Center 7038559 § 206424 $ 7244983  §  7,365149 $ 2,281 § (122,446) 102%
15 - Ryan 5559712 § 297000 § 5856712 | $ 5916229 § 4595 $ (64112) 101%
21 - Wynn Middle 5586115 $ 90000 § 5676115 $ 5565442 $ 2009 $ 108664 98%
31- TMHS 7883013 $ (131424) $ 7751589 § 7,637,034 $ 8115 - § 106,439 = 99%
84 - School Comm 146,850 § = LS 146850 $ 232728 $ - |'s (85,878) 158%
86 - Administration 1,184,131  $ . $ 1184131 § 1111477 $ 3348 § 69,305  94%
88 - Technology Dept 1255248 §  (40498) $ 1214750 $ 1249312 $ 38351 ' $ (72912)  106%
89 - Transportation 4316338 $ 320000 $ 4636338 § 4719728 § 161508  § (244,898) 105%
91 - Athletics 737,218 § - $ 737218 § 8-28,231 s 808  $ (91,821) 112%
95 - Special Education 7088297 $ 750,000 ' § 8738297 § 8632346 $ 12322 § 93629  99%
97 - Build & Grounds 2995888 $ 248742 § 3244630 § 3133518 § 84,660 § 26452 99%
98 - Systemwide 3144029 $ 86895 $ 3230924 § 3159715 $ 1556 § 69,654  98%
CAPITAL OUTLAY 789,603 § (740,000) $ 49,603  $ 49,603 ST : 100%
RS BUDGER 56,330,710 §$ 1,035,139 $ 57,365849 §$ 57,034292 $ 326,606 $ 4951 . 100%

BALANCES




TEWKSBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
FY25 QUARTERLY EXPENDITURE REPORT BY FUNCTION CODE

7/2/2025

FUNCTION CODE - DESC Budget Expended Encumbered Avail. Budget Avail %
REGULAR EDUCATION AND UNCLASSIFIED EXPENSES
1110 - SCHOOL COMMITTEE _ _ _
Clerical Salaries $7,000 $7,463 S0 -$463 -6.6%
Other Salaries $13,250 $12,813 S0 $438 3.3%
‘Contracted Services $97,000 $142,716 S0 845,716 -47.1%
‘Supplies $1,000 $3,149 S0 -62,149 -214.9%
Other Expenses $28,600 $66,587 SO -$37,987 -132.8%
1110 - SCHOOL COMMITTEE Totals 146,850 232,728 S0 -585878  -58.5% |
1210 - SUPERINTENDENT
'Professional Salaries $234,240 $244,194 $809 -$10,763  -4.6%
Clerical Salaries 580,397 $77,995 $292 $2,110 2.6%
|Contracted Services $23,000 $20,970 SO 52,030 8.8%
‘Supplies $9,500 $4,736 S0/ $4,764  50.1%
Other Expenses $19,500 $31,835 S0 -$12,335 -63.3%
1210 - SUPERINTENDENT Totals _5366.657 $379,730 $1,101 ' -$14,194 -3.9%
1220 - ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT
|Professional Salaries $161,827 $170,015 $613 -$8,802 -5.4%
Clerical Salaries $72,098 $72,838 $268 61,008  -1.4%
{Supplies $500 $1,338 S0 -$838  -167.7%
Other Expenses $2,500 $5,466 S0 -$2,966  -118.7%
1220 - ASSISTANT SUPT Totals $236,924 $249,658 ﬁ -$13,615 -5.7%
1230 - OTHER DISTRICTWIDE ADMINISTRATION
\Professional Salaries $5,000 S0 S0 $5,000  100.0%
1230 - OTHER DISTWIDE ADM Totals S5,000 S0 S0 55,000 100.0%
1410 - BUSINESS & FINANCE _ _
Professional Salaries $232,795 $185,449 $575 $46,7711  20.1%
Clerical Salaries $135,018 $137,725 $507 -$3,214 -2.4%
Contracted Services $17,400 $43,987 S0 -626,587  -152.8%
Supplies $7,000 $5,193 S0 $1,807 25.8%
Other Expenses $34,300 $10,328 S0 $23,973 69.9%
1410 - BUSINESS & FINANCE Totals 426,513 $382,681 $1,082 $42,750.  10.0%
1420 - HUMAN RESOURCES & BENEFITS _ _
Professional Salaries 575,880 $77,329 $284 -$1,733 -2.3%
1420 - HR & BENEFITS Totals $75,880 $77,329 $284 $1,733  23%
1450 - ADM TECHNOLOGY - DISTRICTWIDE
;Clerical Salaries $66,329 $67,176 $251 -5598 -0.9%
Contracted Services $202,901 $284,268 536,867 -$118,234 -58.3%
Supplies $44,902 $6,621 S12 $38,269 85.2%
Other Expenses $2,000 $5,639 S0 -63,639  -182.0%
1450 - ADM TECH - DISTRICTWIDE Totals $316,632 $363,705 $37,130 -$84,203 -26.6%
2120 - DEPT HEADS (NON SUPERVISORY)
_Professional Salaries $364,924 $394,661 $1,040 -$30,777 -8.4%
Contracted Services S0 S0 S0 S0 0.0%
2120 - DEPT HEADS Totals $364,924 $394,661 $1,040 -530,777 -8.4%
2210 - SCHOOL LEADERSHIP
iProfessional Salaries $1,494,499 $1,513,810 $10,239 -$29,551 -2.0%
Clerical Salaries $537,957" $565,204 $1,246 -528,492 -5.3%
Supplies $29,200 $18,338 S30 $10,832 37.1%
Other Expenses $23,300 $4,785 S0 518,515 79.5%
2210 - SCHOOL LEADERSHIP Totals $2,084,556 $2,102,137 $11,515 -528,696 -1.4%
2250 - ADM TECHNOLOGY & SUPPORT - SCHOOLS
Supplies $10,000 $5,857 S0 $4,143 41.4%
2250 - ADM TECH & SUPP - SCHOOLS Totals $10,000 $5,857 S0 $4,143 41.4%
2305 - TEACHERS, CLASSROOM
Professional Salaries $19,608,370 $19,203,289 S0 $405,080 2.1%
2305 - TEACHERS, CLASSROOM Totals _$19,608,370 $19,203,289 SO $405,080 2.1%




TEWKSBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
FY25 QUARTERLY EXPENDITURE REPORT BY FUNCTION CODE

7/2/2025

FUNCTION CODE - DESC Budget Expended Encumbered Avail. Budget Avail %
2324 - SUBSTITUTES, LONG TERM _ _
Other Salaries $164,001 $109,803 S0 $54,198 33.0%
2324 - SUBSTITUTES, LONG TERM Totals $164,001 $109,803 S0 $54,198 33.0%
2325 - SUBSTITUTES, SHORT TERM B
Other Salaries $427,081 $435,586 S0 -$8,505  -2.0%
2325 - SUBSTITUTES. SHORT TERM Totals $427,081 $435.586 S0 -58.505 -2.0%
2330 - PARAPROFESSIONALS
Other Salaries $642,300 $651,338 S0 $9,037  -1.4%
2330 - PARAPROFESSIONALS Totals $642,300 $651,338 $0 -$9,037 -1.4%
2340 - LIBRARIANS/MEDIA CTR DIRECTORS
Professional Salaries $295,867 $224,351 S0 $71,516  24.2%
2340 - LIBRARIANS Totals $295,867 $224,351 $0 $71,516 24.2%
2352 - INSTRUCTIONAL COACHES
Professional Salaries $606,560 $617,067 S0 -$10,507 -1.7%
Supplies ' $8,000 $156 50 57,844 98.0%
2352 - INSTRUCTIONAL COACHES Totals $614,560 $617.224 S0 -52.664 -0.4%
2354 - STIPENDS FOR TEACHERS PROVIDING INSTRUCTIONAL COACHING
Professional Salaries $101,716 $84,253 S0 $17,463 17.2%
2354 - STIPENDS FOR COACHING Totals $101,716, $84,253 $0 $17,463 17.2%
2356 - COSTS FOR INSTRUCTIONAL STAFF TO ATTEND PROF DEV
Other Expenses $62,600 $41,681 52,930 $17,989 28.7%
2356 - COSTS TO ATTEND PROF DEV Totals $62,600 $41,681 $2,930 $17,989 28.7%
2358 - OUTSIDE PROF DEV PROVIDERS FOR STAFF
‘Contracted Services $37,818 $19,798 S0 $18,020  47.6%
2358 - OUTSIDE PD PROVIDERS Totals $37,818 $19,798 S0 $18.020 47.6%
2410 - TEXTBOOKS
Supplies $13,000 $3,734 $0 $9,266  71.3%
2410 - TEXTBOOKS Totals $13,000 $3,734 S0 $9,266 71.3%
2415 - OTHER INST MATERIALS (LIBRARIES)
Supplies $24,000 $19,175 $0 $4,825  20.1%
2415 - LIBRARY MATERIALS Total '$24,000 $19,175 $0 $4,825 20.1%
2420 - INSTRUCTIONAL EQUIPMENT
Supplies $129,168 $47,431 $0 $81,737 63.3%
2420 - INST EQUIPMENT Totals $129,168 $47,431 $0 $81,737 63.3%
2430 - GENERAL CLASSROOM SUPPLIES
Supplies $185,689 $175,174 $149 $10,367 5.6%
2430 - CLASSROOM SUPP Totals $185,689 $175,174 %149 $10,367 5.6%
2440 - OTHER INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
Contracted Services $61,000 548,963 SO $12,037 19.7%
Supplies $20,000 $31,940 $2,374 $14314  -71.6%
Other Expenses $1,900 $1,003 SO $897 47.2%
2440 - OTHER INST SERV Totals $82,900 $81,906 $2,374 -$1,380 -1.7%
2451 - INSTRUCTIONAL HARDWARE - STUDENT & STAFF DEVICES
Supplies $220,000 $150,842 $0 $69,158 31.4%
2451 - STUDENT & STAFF DEVICES Totals $220,000 $150,842 $0 $69,158 31.4%
2453 - INSTRUCTIONAL HARDWARE - OTHER
‘Contracted Services $15,000 $73,761 $0 -$58,761  -391.7%
Supplies $15,000 $430 $0 $14,570 97.1%
2453 - INSTR HARDWARE - OTHER Totals $30,000 $74,191 50 544191 -147.3%




TEWKSBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
FY25 QUARTERLY EXPENDITURE REPORT BY FUNCTION CODE

7/2/2025

FUNCTION CODE - DESC Budget Expended Encumbered Avail. Budget Avail %
2455 - INSTRUCTIONAL SOFTWARE & OTHER INST MATERIALS
'Contracted Services 578,000 $93,127 5415 -$15,542 -19.9%
Supplies $62,000 $53,476 S0 $8,524 13.7%
2455 - INST SOFTWARE & OTHER INST Totals, $140,000 $146,603 $415 -$7,018 -5.0%
2710 - GUIDANCE & ADJUSTMENT COUNSELORS
Professional Salaries $1,032,630 $1,034,222 S0 $1,592  -0.2%
Clerical Salaries $49,680 $51,183 S0 -$1,504 -3.0%
:Supplies $1,000 56,440 S0 -55,440 -544.0%
- S0 -58.535 -0.8%
2720 - TESTING & ASSESSMENT _ | :
Other Salaries $5,913 _$5,913 S0 S0 0.0%
Supplies $27,746 $9,595 S0 518,151 65.4%
2720 - TESTING & ASSESSMENT Totals $33,659 $15,508 S0 518,151 53.9%
2800 - PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES
Professional Salaries $146,120 $148,649 $516 -$3,044 -2.1%
2800 - PSYCH SERVICES Totals $146,120' $148,649 $516 -$3,044 -2.1%
3100 - ATTENDANCE & PARENT LIAISON SERVICES
Professional Salaries $5,796 $5,788 S0 $8 0.1%
3100 - ATTENDANCE SERVICES Totals $5,796 $5,788 SO S8 0.1%
3200 - MEDICAL/HEALTH SERVICES
Professional Salaries $806,907 $835,862 SO -$28,956 -3.6%
Other Salaries $10,000 $13,804 SO -$3,804 -38.0%
Contracted Services $6,500 $5,650 SO $850 13.1%
Supplies $10,637 SS_,627 . S0 55__,010 47.1%
Other Expenses $1,200 779 S0 $421 35.1%
3200 - MEDICAL SERVICES Totals $835,244 $861,722 S0 -$26,479 -3.2%
3300 - TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
Professional Salaries $72,380 $16,291 S0 $56,090 77.5%
Contracted Services $2,029,320 $1,988,019 $128,917 -587,616 -4.3%
3300 - TRANSPORTATION Totals $128.917 -531,526 -1.5%
3510 - ATHLETICS
Professional Salaries $455,972 $476,315 $398 -$20,742 -4.5%
~ ClericalSalaries  $25,340 $22,078 $0. $3,262 12.9%
OtherSalaries  $72,660 $84,123 $0 $11,463  -15.8%
Contracted Services $108,500 $132,298 S0 -$23,798 -21.9%
Supplies $42,746 $74,319 512 -$31,585 -73.9%
- Cther Expenses $20,000 $31,124 $397 -511,521 -57.6%
- 7 $808 -595.847 -13.2%
3520 - OTHER STUDENT ACTIVITIES : _
Other Salaries $93,025 $111,259 S0 -$18,234 -19.6%
Contracted Services $3,500 SO S0 $3,500 100.0%
Other Expenses $2,000 $1,700 S0 $300 15.0%
- E IV $98,525 $112,959 S0 -514,434 -14.7%
3600 - SCHOOL SECURITY |
Professional Salaries $260,757 $260,698 S0 S59 0.0%
- SCHOOL SE I 5260,757 $260,698 S0 559 0.0%
4110 - CUSTODIAL SERVICES .
Other Salaries $1,548,501 $1,510,405 : $6,084 $32,011 2.1%
Supplies $95,000 $169,297 S0 -$74,297 -78.2%
4110 - CUSTODIAL SERVICES Totals 51,643,501 $1,679,702 56,084 -542,286 -2.6%
4120 - HEATING OF BUILDINGS 1
Contracted Services $155,000 S0 S0 $155,000 100.0%
Other Expenses $513,500 $474,013 S0 539,487 7.7%
4120 - HEATING OF BUILDINGS Totals $668,500 $474,013 ) $194,487 29.1%
2130 - UTILITY SERVICES -
Contracted Services $891,890 $927,896 S0 -$36,006 -4.0%
4130 - UTILITIES Totals $891,890 $927.896 SO -536,006 -4.0%




TEWKSBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS
FY25 QUARTERLY EXPENDITURE REPORT BY FUNCTION CODE

7/2/2025

FUNCTION CODE - DESC Budget Expended Encumbered Avail. Budget Avail %
4210 - MAINTENANCE OF GROUNDS _ _
Contracted Services $37,000 $47,055 S0 -$10,055 -27.2%
Supplies $25,000 51,843 (0] $23,157 92.6%
Other Expenses $4,000 53,354 S0 $646 16.1%
4210 - MAINTENANCE OF GROUNDS Totals 66.000 52,253 S0 $13,747 20.8%
4220 - MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS |
Other Salaries $665,898 $694,525 | $2,027 $30,654  -4.6%
~_____ Contracted Services _ $744,342 _$750,169 $82,155 -587,982 -11.8%
Supplies $100,000 $52,372 5478 $47,150 47.1%
‘Other Expenses $36,000 $11,952 $0 $24,048  66.8%
4220 - MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS Totals $1,546,240 $1,509,018. 584,660 -547,439 -3.1%
4225 - BUILDING SECURITY SYSTEM
Contracted Services $15,000 $631 $0 $14,369.  95.8%
4225 - BUILDING SECURITY Totals $15,000 $631 S0 $14,369 95.8%
4400 - TECHNOLOGY INFRASTRUCTURE, MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT - SALARIES
Professional Salaries $275,352 $278,203 $1,017 —$3,868.j -1.4%
Other Salaries $143,166 $178,193 $203: -$35,230 -24.6%
4400 - TECH SUPPORT - SALARIES Totals $418,518" $456,396 $1,220: -$39,098 -9.3%
4450 - TECHNOLOGY INFRASTRUCTURE, MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT - ALL OTHER
‘Contracted Services $114,600° $126,573 S0 -$11,973 -10.4%
Supplies $30,000 $17,641 SO $12,359 41.2%
4450 - TECH SUPPORT - ALL OTHER Totals $144,600 $144,214 S0 $386 0.3%
5150 - EMPLOYEE SEPERATION COSTS
Professional Salaries $48,000 ' $206,532 SO -$158,532 -330.3%
5150 - EMPLOYEE SEPERATION Totals $48,000 $206,532 4] -$158,532 -330.3%
7400 - EQUIPMENT
Supplies $5,000 $9,015 $0 $4,015  -80.3%
7400 - EQUIPMENT Total $5,000 $9,015 SO -$4,015 -80.3%
REGULAR AND UNCLASS TOTALS $37,550,964 $37,056,269 $281,106 $213,590 0.6%




TEWKSBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

FY25 QUARTERLY EXPENDITURE REPORT BY FUNCTION CODE

7/2/2025

FUNCTION CODE - DESC Budget Expended Encumbered Avail. Budget Avail %
SPECIAL EDUCATION EXPENSES
2110 - CURRICULUM DIRECTORS (SUPERVISORY) |
Professional Salaries $259,636 $267,340 $928: -$8,633 -3.3%
_Clerical Salaries $284,535 _ $295,883 | $457? -$11,805 -4.1%
Other Expenses $800 $4,794 $0 $3,994  -499.3%
2110 - CURRICULUM DIRECTORS Totals $544,971 $568,017 $1,385 -524,432 -4.5%
2120 - DEPARTMENT HEADS
'Other Expenses $5,600 $6,595 5260 -$1,255 -22.4%
2120 - DEPARTMENT HEADS Totals $5,600 $6,595 $260 -§1,255 -22.4%
2305 - TEACHERS, CLASSROOM
Professional Salaries $3,890,009 $3,836,482 S0 $53,527 1.4%
2305 - TEACHERS, CLASSROOM Totals $3,890,009 $3,836,482 S0 $53,527 1.4%
5520 - MEDICAL/THERAPEUTIC SERVICES
'Professional Salaries $2,058,052 $2,114,824 S0 $56,772  -2.8%
|Contracted Services $14,000 $0 $0 $14,000 100.0%
Supplies $10,000 $1,735 SO 58,265 82.6%
2320 - MEDICAL/THERAPEUTIC Totals $2,082,052 52,116,560 SO -$34,507 -1.7%
2325 - SUBSTITUTES, SHORT TERM
Other Salaries $41,545 $175,404 S0 -$133,859  -322.2%
2325 - SUBSTITUTES, SHORT TERM Totals 541,545 $175,404 S0 -§133,859 -322.2%
2330 - PARAPROFESSIONALS
'Other Salaries $2,156,082 | $2,227,606 SO -$71,524 -3.3%
:Contracted Services $1,560,000 . $1,637,803 S0 -$77,803 -5.0%
2330 - PARAPROFESSIONALS Totals $3,716,082 $3,865,409 S0 -5149,327 -4.0%
2420 - INSTRUCTIONAL EQUIPMENT
Contracted Services $1,803 $1,797 SO S6 0.3%
Supplies $19,000 $11,904 S0 $7,096 37.3%
2420 - INST EQUIPMENT Totals 520,803 51.__3,702 S0 57,102 34.1%
T430 - GENERAL CLASSROOM SUPPLIES
Supplies $53,380 $58,699 $617 -$5,936  -11.1%
3430 - CLASSROOM SUPPLIES Totals $53,380 558,699 5617 -$5,936 -11.1%
2440 - OTHER INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICES
Contracted Services $898,560 $948,441 $10,346 | -$60,227 -6.7%
2440 - OTHER INST SERVICES Totals $898,560 5948,441 $10,346 -$60,227 -6.7%
2455 - INSTRUCTIONAL SOFTWARE & OTHER INST MATERIALS
Supplies $75,000 $79,082 $300 64382 100.0%
2455 - INST SOFTWARE & OTHER INST Totals $75,000 $79,082 $300 -$4,382 100.0%
2710 - GUIDANCE & ADJUSTMENT COUNSELORS
Professional Salaries $98,887 $99,489 S0 -$602 -0.6%
2710 - GUID & ADJ COUNSELORS Totals $171,076 $171,678 SO -$601 -0.4%
2720 - TESTING & ASSESSMENT
Contracted Services $10,000 $12,695 $0 $2,695  -26.9%
2720 - TESTING & ASSESSMENT Totals $10,000 512,695 50 -$2,695 -26.9%
2800 - PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES
.Professional Salaries $354,832 $330,454 S0 $24,378 6.9%
|Contracted Services $10,000 $9,999 S0 S1 0.0%
2800 - PSYCH SERVICES Totals $364,832 $340,453 S0 $24,379 6.7%



TEWKSBURY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 7/2/2025
FY25 QUARTERLY EXPENDITURE REPORT BY FUNCTION CODE

FUNCTION CODE - DESC Budget Expended Encumbered Avail. Budget Avail %

3200 - MEDICAL/HEALTH SERVICES

|Professional Salaries $10,000 $10,000 S0 S0 0.0%
3200 - MEDICAL SERVICES Totals $10,000 $10,000 SO S0 0.0%
3300 - TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

|Other Salaries $50,000 $74,249 S0 $24,249:  -48.5%

Contracted Services $2,501,018 $2,611,995 | $32,591 -$143,568 -5.7%
3300 - TRANSPORTATION Totals $2,551,018 $2_,_6_86,244 $32,591 -$167,817 -6.6%
9100 - TUITION TO MASS SCHOOLS

Contracted Services $2,000,080 $1,975,710 S0 $24,370 1.2%
9100 - TUITION TO MASS SCHOOLS Totals $2,000,080 $1,975,710 S0 $24,370 1.2%
9300 - TUITION TO NON-PUBLIC SCHOOLS | _ |

Contracted Services $2,200,977 $2,124,050 S0 $76,927 3.5%
9300 - TUITION TO NON-PUBLIC Totals $2,200,977 $2,124,050 S0 $76,927 3.5%
9400 - TUITION TO COLLABORATIVES _

Contracted Services $1,129,296 $939,203 SO- $190,093 16.8%
9400 - TUITION TO COLLABORATIVES Totals $1,129,296 $939,203 S0 $190,093 16.8%
SPECIAL EDUCATION TOTALS $19,765,281 $19,928,421. $45,500 -$208,639 -1.1%

SUMMARY

Available Available

CATEGORY Budget Expended Encumbered Budget %
REGULAR & UNCLASS TOTALS $37,550,964 $37,056,269 $281,106 $213,590 0.6%
SPECIAL EDUCATION TOTALS ﬂg.765,281_ $19,928,421; $45,500 -$208,639 -1.1%
SALARY & OPERATING SUBTOTAL  $57,316,246 $56,984,689 $326,606_ $4,951_ 0.0%
CAPITAL OUTLAY $49,603 $49,603 SO SO 100.0%

GRAND TOTAL $57,365,849 $57,034,292§ $326,606 $4,951 0.0%




|€9V'ETTS €L8'TS SETVET'YS |0LS'6VEYS 000°9LT$- 0L5'SZSPS STVLOL ONIM3a
|v6rSES 03 6T9'STYS ETT'ISYS 0s ETTISYS |STV.LOL DNILVHIHO ONIMIA
|696°LLTS EL8'TS 9T9'STLES |LSt'868'ES 000'9LT$- LSY'VLO0'YS STV10L A¥VIVS ONIMIA
%  L0T  150°L$ 0 9Y8'TS 968'8$ 0$ 968'8% ddNS SSISSY '8 1SIL MIA 602109 OSTTITET
% 6'8  9¥9'ES 0S pSES 1000'%$ 0s 000'v$ AY3S LNOD M/S ISNI M3Ia 902109 ZYITYYET
% 81§ 1e1$ 0$ 621 0SS 0% 05t IN13Y 3DVIIN MIA T2OTO9 09TTOSET
%  €E€L  |Slt'8S 0 |szT'ees 00L'TES 0$ 00L'TES ONIHOV3L - S31ddNS M3 ££0TOS TSTTOSET
%  9TF S80S 0S |ST6TS 000°L$ 0$ 1000°2$ @3 J3dS - S311ddNS M3A  ¥£OTO9| TSTTEVET
% 965 | VEL'LS 0$ EEV'TTS L9T'6TS 0$ LIT'6TS S311ddNS AdOD M3Q  €00T09 OSTTSTET
% LT0T  69% 0s$ 16907$ 000'7$ 0$ 000'v$ ddNS AYVYEIT M3A YEOTO9 OSTTETET
%  ¥S8T  €£9'TS 0s L9ES 000'Z$ 0s 000'Z$ SHO0H.IXIL M3IA E¥OTO9 TSTIBIEL
%  6TE  S9E'SS 0s$ SE9'ZS 10008$ 0s$ 000'8% IN13Y 3SYN0D MIA 0ZOTO9 09TTLIET
% 6TOT  000'LS- 05 000'£9€$ |00009€$ 0$ 1000'09€$ 3aI¥ 23dS AN1S M3IA| ZEOTO9| OVTTEVET
% 09 0SE'Z$ l0$ 0ST$ 1005'2$ 03 005'Z$ 4NOD ONI¥d M3 600T09 O9TTLOET
%  T8S 1828 0 6YES 0095 0s 009% S3INA ONI¥d M3d L00T09 O9TTLOET
% T8  pS8'TS 03 9PTTS 000'e$ 0s$ 000'€$ $317ddNS 321440 M3a  000TO9 OSTTLOET
% S€LT  L66TS- 035 L6V'0TS 1005'8$ 0s$ 005'8% YHD 9078 LSND M3d 811009, OETTO9ET
% 915 SL9'6S 0s$ \SZTE'OTS 1000°025 0s 000°02$ JNILYIAO 1¥IAOLSNI M3 LTTO09 OETTOIET
%  TYOT  888'9%- ST9S 1601'89TS 9€T'Z9T$ 0$ 9ET'ZITS SIIUYIVS T¥IQ0LSND M3 9TTO09 OETTO9ET
%  G00T EEVS 0$ |€29'68$ 061'68% 0s 061'68$ ¥OTISNNOI rAY M3d 780009 TITIITET
%  ¥8Zl  I0P'TS 0 |EVE9S r6'rS 0s$ w6'rS dILS A30 40¥d M3d 0£0009 TTTTLTET
% 6596 19SS 0sS |P9T'ETS SZB'ETS 0$ SZ'ETS $3AIV AYYHEIT M3IQ  £50009| OETTETET
%  86L  S16'9% 03 YOE'L2S 0zT'veES 0% 0Zz'vES NVI¥VHEI1 M3Q 990009 OTTIETET
% 999  |8T0'STS 0S 786'62S 000'sv$ 0s$ 000°s¥$ SS3D3IY/HONNT M3IA’ 090009 TETTOSET
%  9TIT  SLE'LTS- 0% YET'E9TS 6S8'SETS 0s$ 6S8'SETS 3QIV NILHYOYIANIY M3A 950009 OETTEVET
% 898 660'55$ 0$ LY9'T9ES VL' LTYS 0s$ L LTYS 3a1v a3 VI23dS M3d| 550009 TETTEVET
%  v'TTer  S00'9vS- 0$ SEQ'LYS 0£9'T$ 0$ 0€9'T$ 3QIv €NS ATV M3A ZTET09 OETTOSET
% 86 8665 03 LS6'65S §S6°09$ 0% SS6'09$ ¥HIL 8NS A1Iva M3A  TTETO9 OETTOSET
%  6LLT  vL9'PS- |0S 7£9°0TS 000'9S 0s$ 10009$ 3aIv 1351 M3Q 630009 OETTEVET
% LLT  €6EITS 0S |S£2'9$ 1899'72S 0s$ 1899°22$ 8NS INYL ONOT M3 620T09 ZETTOSET
%  L08  YI8'BIS 03 v28'8LS 8€9'£6S 0% 8€9°26%$ TS YIDVNVIA 3S¥D M3 €80009 TITTEVET
% LTOTTS§- 0$ LTT'ES SLO'ES |0$ SL0'€S ¥3HIV3L Av3IH M3d' 880009 OTTTOSET
%  TOOT  EVIS- 03 9vL'v6$ (£09'76S 0$ €09'76S J3dS av¥OV M3Q T90009 | TTTTOSET
% €56 €6T'8LS 03 Y9S'v65'1S 98L'2L9'1$ 08 95L'2L9'TS SIIYVIVS SHIHOVIL MIA ZS0009 OTTTOSET
% 906 888995 0% [FATES 092145 000'9£1%- 109£'888$ ¥HOL G3 D34S QO M3d| 650009 OTTTIEVET
% VLOT  YITvS- 91Z$ 52£'09$ LTL'9SS 0% LTL'95S S3I¥VIVS T¥DI¥I1D M3A TTO009 OCTTLOET
% 186  8659TS 1v0'1S 68SVETS 8CC'8ETS 0$ 8CT'SETS Nidd LSSY/NI¥d M3Q 050009/ OTTTLOET
TOOHIJS ONIM3Ad
asn% —_— a3an3dxa 13sang N doYddV I = .
=4 I39ana TIVAV INYEWONI TS e SY3ISNVHL T NOILd¥ISIa a0 SH0
YIINIO LSOO Ag uoday aimipuadxy Aispend GZAJ
Sz0z/t/L sjooyas aliqnd Ainqgsyma]




8855~ T81°6S S5 662 €3 8ET'VOE €5 000721 8ET'08T €5 S1V101 ¥OO¥8 HLVIH
198'€$- 206S v0Sv9TS ZrSTI9TS 0% TYST9TS SIVLO0L1 ONILVY¥3dO XOO¥Hd H1VaH
= |9Lz’e$ |6LTY$ TPO'SET'ES 965'ZYT'ES 000'vZT$ '965'8T0'ES SIVLOL AYVIVS YOOYE HLVIH |
%99S 580°T$ 0sS STY'TS 005°CS 0$ 005°2$ ddNS SS3SSV '3 1S3L &H 607109 OSETITET
% 698  STSS 0$ SLY'ES 000'v$ 0$ 1000%S A¥3S INOD M/S ASNI §H 90ZT09 CYETYYET
% v¥9T  T9TS- 0S TITHS 0SS 0s$ 0SZ$ 8INI34 39VIIN €H  TZOTO9| 09ETOSET
% €v6  89T'TS 0s |£ST'6TS STE'0TS 0$ STE'0TS ONIHOV3L-S3I1ddNS 8H £/0TO9 TSETOSET
% 906 085S 0$ 1029'sS 002'9% 0$ 002’95 @3 VI23dS-S3ddNS 8H| #2009 TSETEVET
% ¥ 98Y'v1S 0$ 18975 L9T'61S 03 L9T'6TS $311ddNS AJOJ 8H  £00T09 OSETBIET
% 888 LyvS 0% £S5'ES 0007S 05 000'vS ddNS A¥VYEITgH YEOTO9 OSETETET
% L'L9 S¥9$ 0% SSE'TS 1000'2$ 0$ 000'ZS SY008.1XIL 8H| EFOT09 TSETSTET
% €65 8vT'vS 12065 |0S81$ 000'LS$ 0s |000°L$ 8INI3Y 3SYNOD 8H, 0Z0T09 09ETLTET
% OSET  |8SY'TES- 0S 85¢'TZIS 000'06% 0$ 000065 3Q1V J3dS ANLS 8H/ ZEOTO9 OPETEVET
% 00 005°2$ |0$ 0$ 005'2$ 0$ 00S°Z$ ANOD ONIYd 8H 600T09 O9ETLOET
% €8  |1§¢S 0s 6UES 009$ 0% 009$ SINA ONIYd §H £00TO9 09ETLOET
%  €£6¢ TZ8'TS 108 6LT°TS 000‘ES 0$ ‘000°E$ I1ddNS 321440 €H 000TO9 OSETLOET
%  L'S6  89ES 08 ZET'8S 005'8S 0$ /005°8S YHD 5078 LSND €H 8TT009 OEETOIET
% TEIT  SOETS- |0$ SOE'TTS 000°0T$ 0s 000°0T$ 101v1A01SND H| £1T009 OEETOIET
% 6S0T 68665 |S9¥TS 1T9T8LTS £89'69T$ 0% £89'691$ VS 1VIA0LSND 8H 9TT009 OEETO9ET
%  L00T  |OELS- |0S Z65'70TS 798'€0T$ 0s 798'€0T$ 1SIDOTOHIASd §H | 80009 OTETITET
% 0001 0S 0s |68T°2LS 6BTTLS 08 68T°TLS ¥O13ISNNOD rav 8H| 280009 TIETITET
%  T09T  ¥L6'TS- 0$ 916'LS Tw6'vS 0$ Zre'rs dILS A3Q 40¥d 8H 0£0009, TTETLIET
% 9TPT  |SSL'SS- 0$ 085'61S SZ8'ETS 0s$ SZR'ETS S3alV AMYYEIT1 8H £S0009 OEETETET
% 86/  S16'9S 0S |POE'L2S 0ZZ'vES |0$ 0zT'veES NVI¥VHEI1 8H 990009 OTETETET
% TYS  VIL'TIS 0s L86'VTS R TATR4S 0$ O TARAS $S333¥/HONNT @H 090009 TEETOSET
% 686  TS8'ES 0$ SY6'8YTS 96L'75¢2$ 000‘'07$ 96L°TTTS 3QIv NILYVYOYIANIY 8H| 950009 OEETEYET
%  68IT  ¥TT'ZES- 0% Tvb'202$ LTE'0LTS 000°55$ LTE'STTS 3QIV 03 1VID3dS 8H SS0009 TEETEVET
% 6989  SIS'EES- 0% 90£vES 16Y5 0$ T6vS 3QIV 8NS ANIVA 8H ZTETO9 OEETOSET
%  €L81  8TTITS- 0$ 6ES'SPS TTE'ES |08 TIEYCS ¥HIL 8NS ATIVA 8H TTETO9 OEETOSET
% 878  EEOTS 0sS L96'7$ 00095 0$ 0009% 3QIv 1351 8H 680009 TEETEVET
%  ESE  98L0T$ 0s 88'S$ 899'91$ 0s$ 899'9T$ gNS NYLONOTEH 620T09 ZEETOSET
% 918 SPL'SS 0s$ LTY'STS ZLTTES 1000'265- ULT'ETTS AVIVS SHIDVNYIN ISV 8H €80009 TTETEVET
%  LT0T 25§ 0$ LTT'ES SLO'ES 0$ SLO'ES ¥3IHOV3IL aviH 880009 OTETOSET
%  S00T  /SPS 0% 095765 (€0T'V6S l0$ E0T V65 J3dS QVOV 8H ' T90009 TTETOSET
%  L'V6 0vY'eLS 0s$ 0T6'Z0€'TS 6PE'ILE'TS 000°65S- 6VE'TEV'TS SIIYVIVS SYIHOVIL 8H| 250009 OTETOSET
%  T00T  T€95%- 0$ 6ZT'815S 66Y'LTSS 000°9LT$ 667" TVES Y¥HO1 J34S QO gH| 650009 OTETEVET
% 866  OPIS 162¢$ 1695'65% 8£6'65S 0s$ 8€6'65S SIIWYIVS T¥OI¥TID 8H TT0009 OTETLOET
% 6T0T  SOL'TS- $857$ 0L0'SPTS TS6'YYTS [0S TS6'PYTS VS TYdIDNIYd 8H 050009 OTETLOET
TOOHIJS XOO¥Y HLV3IH
a’sn% @ o _________ a3IanNadxd 13oang R dO¥ddv _— = —
19d I3sanaTivAv JNYEINONI o e SY3ISNVHL T NOILd¥IS3d fao 5y
Y¥ILINIO LSOO Ag Moday aimipuadxz Ajieuend GZAd
sz02/2/t sjooyas aljqnd Ainqsyma ]




ovy'ZeTs- |T8ZZS |6YT'S9E'LS |€86'tVT'LS |¥Z5°90Z$ 655'8€0°LS STVLOL ¥3INID
LEL'ES 0% |£LL’095$ |PIS'P9SS 000529 vIS68YS STV.1OL SNILYHIHO HILNID
N €81°9ZTS- 1827 TLE'V08'9S 691'089°9$ vZr IETS Sv0'6vS'9% STVLOL AYVIVS H3LNTD
% LTr 9T6'TS 0% ¥60'7S 020's$ 0s$ 020's$ ddNS SS3SSV '8 1531 ¥ILINID 60ZT09 OSHYIITET
% €CE  T9LLTS 03 881'8S 05292 0$ 052'9¢3% $31ddNS AJOJ YILNID €00TO9 OSPTSIET
% 00 0052$ 10S 0s 0052S 0$ 00S'CS 3INOJ ONIHd H3IN3D 600T09 O9YTLOET
% T8S  |TOSS 10$ 8695 00Z'1S$ 03 00Z'1$ S3NA DNIYd HILNID £L00T09 O09FTLOET
% 099  96v'ES 0s 17059$ 000°01$ 0s$ |000°0TS AY¥3S LNOD M/S LSNI ¥3LNID 90ZT09 TriTipeET
% 19T  |96CS 0$ v0T$ 00v$ 0% 00vS 8NIIY 3OVITIN ¥3LNID TZOTO9 O09YTOSET
%| 6'S8T  |606'7Z$- 08 £L5'6VS #9992$ 0$ ¥99'92$ HOV31-S3I1ddNS ¥3LNID| ££0TO9 OSYTOSET
% TOIT  e8L% 0s$ 79v'8S 1089'L$ 0$ 089°LS J3dS-S3ITddNS ¥3LNID #20T09 TSYTEVET
% ST18  IWE'TS 08 8502Z$ 000vS 0s$ 000'7$ ddNS AYVYET ¥3LNID YEOTO9 OSPTETET
%  £00T  TES'TS- 08 TES'99YS |000°59%S 1000°5LS 000°06€$S 3QIV 23dS ANLS ¥ILINID| ZEOTO9 OYVIEVET
% LWL 190°1$ [0S BET'ES 00Z'vS 0$ 00Zv7$ ddNS 321440 ¥3INID 000T09 OSYTLOET
%  €TYT  £90°TS- 08 £90'LS 0005S 03 000'SS YHD 5a19 1SND ¥ILNID 8TTO09 OEFTOIET
% L'STT  LEV'9S- 08 LEVTES 1000'52$ 0$ 000'5Z$ 101v1401SNJ ¥3LN3D 11009 OEYTO9ET
% 056 |8yZ'STS TS 6679875 689°T0€$S 0$ 689'70€$ VS TYIQOLSND Y3LINID 9TT009 OEYTOIET
%, YT 1TTTS- 0$ |€8T'TSS 796'6v$ 0$ 296'6vS 1SI90T0HIASd ¥3INID ¥80009 OTYTITET
%  8TOT  €TL'E$- 0$ TES'ETLS 60860 0$ 608°60C$ ¥O13ISNNOD rav ¥1D 780009 TIVIITET
% 88 SZ8'TS 0% SLTS 0002 0S$ 000'ZS SHO0091X31 HIINID| £¥0T09 TSYISTEL
%  6VET  BPE'ES 0% 6¥6'7TS 1009'6% 0s$ 009'6$ GIAI3Y¥ 3SYN0D YILNID 0Z0TO9 09YTLIEL
% 8716  509% 0% 808'9$ ETV'LS |os ETV'LS di1S AJA 40¥d ¥3LNID 00009 TIVILIET
%  0TYT  €80°2TS- 0$ v88°0rS 208'82$ 0s 208'87$ S3dIV AYYHEIT YLD  £S0009 OEVTIETET
%  S00T  /6ES- 08 ¥81°28S £81'18S 0s$ L8L'18S NVI¥vHd(14ILNID 990009 OTHTETET
% 67CT  0LL°0TS 0$ 0LL'LSS 000'2¥S 0s$ 000°LYS $53234/HONNT ¥3LNID| 090009 TEPTOSET
% 0001  98%'VIS- 0s 98y '¥IS 0 0s$ 0% $3AIV 1351 ¥IINID| 680009 TEVTEVET
%  6S0T  ZPE'STS- 0S £8T'0TSS Tr8'18YS 0s$ r8'18Ys 3aIv 03 J3dS ¥ILNID SS0009 ZEYTEVET
% OLvl  91I6'LTS [0S 589'07S 69LCS 0$ 69L'CS Qlv 9nS A1lvd ¥31NID ZTET09 OEPTOSET
% 198  Z69'PIS 08 ¥69'065 98€'S0TS 0s$ 98€'S0TS YHOL 8NS ATIva ¥3LNID| TTET09 OEYTOSET
%  TT8 | 8I8'8% 0% (LES'OVS 599'6Y$ 0% S99'6Y$ 8NS WYL ONOT HILNID 62Z0T09 TEVTOSET
%| ¥'STT 629'6T%- 0$ £2TLYTS Y6Y'LTTS 0s$ Y LTS VS YIDVNVIA ISV ¥IUNID| €80009 TIVTEVET
%  §'88 £Z0'TTS 0$ 7E6'26% 196'F0T$ 9L0'%9%- LEO'69TS 1S17¥103dS v3y ¥ILNID 190009 OTHTOSET
%  6TOT  PSO'ELS 0$ €T8'V96'ES 65L'T68'E$ 005°S6TS 657°969'€$ VS SHIHOVIL ¥ILNID | ZS0009 OTHTIOSET
% 786 6ET'VTS 0$ T10'26L$ |0ST'908$ 03 0ST'908$ YHDL1 D34S QOIN ¥3ILNID| 650009 OTYIEVET
% T9  TEL'ES TS L6L'16S 00L'565 0s$ 00.S6S AHVIVS 19214310 ¥3LNID TTO009 OTYTLOET
%  TTOT  6ZE'SS £96$ S ERETA 187'£5T5 0s$ 187'LSTS VS T¥dIDNIYd ¥3INID| 050009 OTYTLOET
TOOHJS AYV.IN3IINTTI ¥3LNID
asn% @ o_________ —_—— a3anadx3 13sang SHTISNHL do¥ddv — = —
- 135anN49 NVAY JNHAIADNT o~ T HIISNVHL I NOILdI4353a a0 5y
YILNTD LSOO Ag Hoday ainyipuadxy Aliepend SZA-
sz0z/e/L sjooyas adljqnd Aingsymay




TIT'Y9$- S65'7$ 622'916'S$ TIL'958'S$ 000°£6Z$ TIL'655'SS STVLOL NVAY
'S6T'0E$ 6059 vI8'S6ES L19'9Zv$ 1000°S6T$ L19'TEZS STV1OL DNILYY¥3IdO NVAY
] LOY'v6$- 980%$ 91v'025's$ S60'0EV'S$ 000'20T$ S60'8Z€'S$ SIVLOL AHVIVS NVAY | |
% 00  000%$ 0% 0% 000'7$ 0% 000'7$ INIVIA HOL1VAZTI NVAY T6TTO9 OYSTO9ET
% GVEL | 2/8% 0$ TLe'es 005°2$ 0% 005°2$ ddNS SSISSY B 1SIL AY 607109 0SSTITET
%  TT8  £68% 0$ 801'YS 000's$ 0$ 000'5$ AY3S LNOD M/S ISNI AY 90ZT09 ZvSTYET
% 00  |0SZS 0% 0% (15745 0s 05Z$ 8INI138 IDVITIN AY TZOTO9 09STOSET
% 0€S  SPE'OTS 325 L0S'TTS 000'zZ$ 0% 000'22$ ONIHOVAL-S31ddNS AY | ££0T09 TSSTOSET
%  vOT  8LY'pS 0$ [44H 000's$ 0$ 000's$ d323dS-S311ddNS AY| ¥£0TO9 TSSTEVET
%  €£SE  vOV'TIS 0$ (€92'9% L9T'6T$ 0% L9T'6T$ $311ddNS AdOD A €00T09 OSSTSTET
% ve o 8p0'Ts 0% s 1000'2$ 0s 000'2$ ddNS AYVYHEITAY VEOTO9 OSSTETET
%  6ST  789'T$ 0s 8TES 000'2$ 0$ 000'2$ SH008IXILAY €EVOTO9 TSSTSTET
%  8TL  |660'€$ (09€$ Tws'LS 1000°TT$ 0$ 000'T1$ 8INI134 3SYNOJ AY 0ZOTO9 09STLIET
%  TEOL  000'TTS- 0$ 000'95€$ 000°sVES 000°S6T$ 000°0ST$ 301V D3dS ANLS AY ZEOTO9 OVSTEVET
% 00 005°2$ 0$ 0$ 00S'2$ 08 005'2$ ANOD DNIYd AY¥ 600T09 09STLOET
% T8  T0S$ 0% 869% 002'1$ 0% 002'T$ SINAONIYd AY¥ L00TO9 09STLOET
%  L00T  EE%- 0$ €£0'SS 1000'5$ 0$ 000'5$ $311ddNS 301440 AY 000TO9 0SSTLOET
% 96YT 18T 0$ 8Y'L$ 000's$ 0$ 000's$ YHD DA1E LSND AY 8TT009 OESTO9ET
% 659  928'9% 0$ YLT'ETS 000'0Z$ 0$ 1000°02$ 10 1VIQO1SND AY¥ LTT009 OESTOIET
% 86  6V9'ES 8LL3% YSE'TOZS 182'502$ '0$ 18£'502$ VS VIQOLSND AY 9TT009 OESTOIET
% 00T Iw$- 0$ wi'es 660'ZS 0% 660'2$ YOSIAQY 8 XddV NVAY  S80009 EESTOSET
%  L00T  PELS 0$ LTS 800°TTTS 0$ 800'T1T$ LSIDOTOHDASd AY ¥80009 OTSTITET
%  S96 |2s8'T$ 0$ L€9'69% 68T°2LS 0% 681°2L$ YOTISNNOD AV NVAY 280009 TTSTITET
% 9701  888T$ 0% LLO'PLS 681°2L$ 0$ 681°2LS SNNOD dIND NVAY T£0009 TISTITET
%  vv8  SZE'TS 0% (0EY'OTS SSETTS 0% SSE'ZTS dI1S A3Q 404d AY¥| 0£0009 TISTLIET
% 8Vl  |ZS6'STS- 0$ TSS'TSES 009'SEES 000°05$ 009'582$ 301V @3 1VID3dS AY| 550009 ZESTEVET
% 9ELIT  pST9S- 0% 598'9$ 1195 0$ 119% 3dIV 8NS ANYA NVAY ZTET09 OESTOSET
% 80ET  08T'8TS$- 0$ 1995°2L$ 982'65$ 0$ 987'65$ ¥HOL NS ANVA NVAY TTETO9 OESTOSET
%  0'8TT  69E'VS 0% 696'61$ 009'5T$ 0$ 009'ST$ 3AIV 13S1 AY 680009 TESTEVET
% €S8  [89'€$ 0% ETETTS 000'sZ$ 0% 000'52$ 8NS WYL SNOTAY 620109 YESTOSET
% 66  EEVS 0$ £95°TS$ 000'25$ 000'25% 0$ AYVIVS SHIOVNYIA 3SYD AY €80009 TTSTEVET
%  9TL  L¥S'PS 0$ 1L0'TTS 819'9T$ 0$ 819'91$ SYIAVITWVILAY 260009 TTSTOSET
%  L00T  ¥69S- 0s 955v0T$ 798'€0TS 0s 798’01 23dS avOV Ad| 190009 OTSTOSET
% 666 S68TS 03 OTE'TIZ'ES VOZ'ETT'ES 0% rOZ'ETZ'ES SAIYVIVS SYIHOVIL AY 250009 TTSTOSET
% CT90T  689'SYS 0$ T80°6LL$ T6E'EELS 0$ T6EEELS ¥HDLJ3dS GOW A¥ 650009 OTSTEVET
% 8TZT  |€TL'0TS- 6123 9YS'SITS 750'56% 0$ 750'56$ SAIYVIVS T¥DI¥31D AY TTO009 0ZSTLOET
% O0T0T 28T 680'€S ¥86'8£Z5 6VZ'6LTS 0% 6YT'6LC$ Ni¥d LSSV/NI¥d A 0S0009 OTSTLOET
TOOHJS NVAY
([ | — SNESFENG a3Ianadxa 135ang — dOYddV — R [e—
— 135and TIVAV SNYSININ A e SHIISNVHL e NOILdI4J53d @0  SWo
¥ILNID LSOO Ag Moday aimipuadx3 Ajiapiend SZAd
szoz/e/L sjooyas aljqnd Ainqsymay




¥99'801% 6002S ThY'S95'SS S11'9£9'SS 0007065 |STT'985'SS 'STYIOL SIM
vL6°08S 80ZS SEV'TEZS LT9'ZTES .om LTI9Z1ES S1V.L0L ONILYYHIdO SINM
_ 1069225 TO8TS |LOO'VEE'SS |B6V'EIESS 1000°06% B6Y'ELT'SS STVLOL AYVIVS SIAM
ﬁx_. 00 0ses 0s 0s 0sZs 0s (4174 NITY IDVITHN SIWM TZ0T09 09TCTSET
% 979 T0SvS$ 0$ 66v'LS 000'21S 0 000TTS | gINI3Y 3SUN0D SIWM  0Z0T09 09TZLTET
) .omﬁm' 06TS .om 0sS 0s 0s ﬁ‘ JONIYIINOD ad SWM 600T09 T9TC/TET
% 09 0SECS .om 0STS .oom.mm 0s 005'7S , 4ANOD DNidd SWM 600T09 09TC/L0ET
% 7’88 .Nomm .om 869S .cow.ﬁm 0s 00Z'TS ; SINA DNIYd SWM L00T09 0STC/0ET
%) 9SGy r0'61S .om .wmmﬁam 000°SES 0s 000'SES W ONIHOVY3I1-ddNS SWM £/0T09 TSTCTSET
% Tve 962'ES 08 Y0L'TS 000°'S$ 0$ 000's$ | @3 23dS-ddNS SWM  £0T09| TSTZEVET
x__ €C1T TET'TS- .ow T€C'T1S 000°0TS om 000'0TS W AY3S LNOD M/S LISNI SINM 90¢T09 ZHTCvveEL
% 6TE  TSO'ETS |08 |STT9 L9T'6TS 0% LIT'6TS S3IMddNS AdOD SWM | £00T09 0STZ8TET
% LYE £€9'TS 0$ |£98S 005°2S 0$ 00S‘ZS ‘ ddNS SS3SSV '8 1S3L SWM | 602109/ 0STZITET
% 6L EVPS 0s LSS'TS 0002$ 0% 000'Z$ , ddNS AYvdEITSWM e0T09| OSTZETET
% 00 coadm 0sS 0s 000°ZS 0s ooo\Nm SY0091X31 SWM' €¥0T09 TSTZBTIET
% T'8T ST6'PS 818 £90°1S 000'9S .om 000°9S ddNns 321440 SWM 000109 0STZ/L0ET
% 00 ooo\ﬁ.m .cm .am .oooim 0s 000tS INIVIAN HO1VATTI SWM | T6TT09 OvTC09€ET
% GTET  |STES- 08 STE'TS 000'TS |08 000°T$ dINDI YLSNI SWM  YEZTO9 TPIZISET
%, €48 .mNﬁmNm 0s 7LT'E8TS .ooodﬁmm 0s 000°0T2S 3dIV 23dS ANLS SIANM  ¢E0T09 OFTZEVET
%, 8/LTT 168%- 0s 168°6S 000'SS 0s 000'ss MNHD ©5A19 1SND SIWM 8TT009 O0ETZ09ET
% SETT .mS\Nm. 0s .mﬁoﬁﬁm 000'STS 0s 000STS 10 VIAOLISND SIWM LTT009| OETC09ET
%| 196 .deﬂm .wNwm TER'SOTS 9€29TCS .om .wmhoHNm VS IVIAOLSND SINM | 9TT009 OETCO9ET
%  VIET  L8T'PS- 0s$ PIT'LTS L26'TTS$ 0s £26'TTS YOSIAQY 8 XddV SIAM | S80009 EETZISET
% 669  |€90'/Z$ 0s$ |L£6'295 000°06$ 1000°06$ 0$ 1SID0TOHOASd SWM | ¥80009| TTTZITET
_Nm 001 0TS 0s 62185 TZ0'8YS 0s HNo.m¢m HOTASNNOD rav SIWM 280009 OTTC9ITET
% 10T TEV'ES- _om 86STvTS 99T'6€7S 0s 991°6£7S IDINVAIND SWM T/0009 OTTCITET
% T01T .¢mm€m. 0s m.om.mﬁm GGEZTS 0s GGEZTS dI1S A3A 40Hd SWM 040009 TTTZ.LTET
% 8'€6 086'€TS 0s £95°'T12S L¥S'sees 0s Dwm.mNNm 3dIv A3 VID3dS SIWM SS0009 CETZEVET
%, 6°'Scl .mmmﬁmm- 0S [foralts TS 0s .NNN.ﬁw 341V NS ANIVA SINM ZTET09 0ETZTSET
,x__ L'v0T Y9E'ES- .om €6L'7LS 6ZV'TLS 0s 6ZV'TLS HHIL NS AVA SWM | TTET09 OETCTSET
% 00 .cocdm .om .om 0009S 0s 0009S S3AIv 13SISIWM 680009 TETCEVET
% L'€E6 .mwm\ﬁm .om LEV'ETS 000'szS .ow 000'szS 4NS WYL ONOTSWM 620T09 SETCISET
% 0001 _Hmmm. .om TSSS 0s 0s ow VS YO IASYD SINM | €80009 TTTZEVET
% 1'8E _mﬁwm .om £BES coc..nm om 000'TS 4OLNL d3 TvID3dS SINM 290009 OTTCZEVET
% VL6 808'81S 0% |Z€€'269S OVT'TTLS 0$ OrTTTLS ¥HOL J3dS AOIN SIWM | 650009 OTTZEVET
_X. 8001 .mmmdmm- .cm .m¢mNNm~mm .Dmdom.mm 0s LTS'00E’ES VS SYIHOVIL SINM ¢S0009 OTTZLEET
x. 1°66 .Nwmm 2818 758's6S 916'965 om 916'96% VS IVOIHITD SN TTO009 OCTC/0ET
% 3'T0T .ﬁmm.wm- .mmmw 1982428 £06897S 0s £06897S NIdd L1SSV/NIYd SWM 050009 OTTZLOET
% 0¢0T ZEES- 0% 056'9TS 8T9'9TS om 819°9TS SY3AV3IT INVILSNM | 60009 CTTZTSET
TOOHDS 31AAIIN NNAM
aisn % e — ————— a3ianNadx3 139and e ———. dOdddv I — —
19d 139ang 1lIivAv JNHLINDNI alA RETE SHIAISNVHL 1VNIOINO NOILdIY¥IS3qa 40 940
MILNID LSO Ag Lioday ainyipuadxzy Alispend) GZA4
szoz/z/L sjooyas alqgnd Ainqgsymaj




6EV'9015 STL85 VEOLET'LS 685 18L'LS DIV TELS- ET0E8B'LS SIVIOLSHIAL
PET'E9S- 1598'vS 6V6'8SES |08S°00ES 0$ 08S'00E$ 'STYLOL DNILVYIdO SHINL
_ €£9°69TS 0ST'ES 1980'8LT'LS '600°TSP'LS YT TETS- EEV'28S'LS STVLOL AHVIVS SHINLL

% STL  TIs 0S '8GES 0055 0$ .005S gIN13Y IDVITIN SHINL TZOTO9 09TETSET
% £LS  L0V'9S 8LY'TS STT'LS |000°STS 0s |000°STS INI13Y 3SYNOD SHIAL 0ZOT09 09TELTET
% T8  |LOEWS 0$ '£69'TS 000'9% 0s 000'9S S3NQA INIYd SHINL £00T09, 09TELOET
% 0S8  00€S 0$ 100£'TS 0002 0s 000'¢S $3NA INIANLS SHAL £00TO9 TITETSET
%  GTIT | €5L'SS- 0S (€5£'GSS 000°0SS 0s 000°0SS ONIHIYIL-S3ddNS SHNL ££0T09| TSTETSET
%  8vSe  €15'8%- 985% 9ZH'ETS 005'SS 0s$ 005'SS Q323dS$-$311ddNS SHALL #20T09| TSTEEVET
% 90§ 18'1S 0% 61S'TS 000°€S 0S$ 000'€S SH0081X3L SHINL E€70T09 TSTESTET
%  6LE  66L'9TS 0$ 15665 052'9Z% 0% 0S2'9Z5 ddNS AdOD SHINLL €00TOY OSTESTET
% 000T |9TT'TS- |0S 9IT'TS 10 0$ 0% 3DNIYIANOD Ad SHINL! 600T09 TOTELTET
% Ovv9 | Obp'SS- 0S |0vb'9S |000'T$ 0$ 000'T$ $311ddNS AIND SHNL| 000709 TSTEITET
%  000T 05 0s [£16S5 €16'GS Y6 0vs- LER'IVS AYVTVS SS3SSV '8 LSTLSHINL €STO09 9ETETZSET
% 00 |0EE'9S 0$ 10 0€E'9S 0$ 0EE'9S ddnsS $S3SSV B 1531 SHWL 60ZT09 OSTEITET
% 866 91§ 0s$ 1986°LS 100085 0s 00085 ddNS AYYHEI SHNL YEOT09 OSTEETET
% 9TLT  PIEPIS- PLE'TS lov6'TES 000°0Z$ 0S 000075 NOILYNAVYD SHALL ZFTT09 TSTELOET
%  8%8 vIZ'TS 15 wLL'9S 000'8S 0s 000'8S ddNsS 321440 SHINL 000T09; OSTELOET
% 00 000'8S 08 |08 1000°8S |05 000'8S INIVIN YOLVATT3 SHL T6TTO9 OFTE09ET
%  S6ST TWS'ESS- 0$ [TPS'EPTS 1000°06% 0s$ 000'065 3d1V 23dS ANLS SHALL ZE0T09 OPTEEVET
%  9PS L1I8'TS |0S €8T'7S 1000'vS 0sS 000'%S ANGCIWIYID SHN SHINLL 8YTT09 OVTELOET
% 00 0002 0% 0$ 1000°TS oS 000°2S S317ddNS M/S 1SNI SHINLL £0ZTO3 ESTEPVET
%  80ST  |048'T¢s- |STHS G5¥'L9S '000'SHS 0s '000'sS AY3S LNOD M/S LSNI SHINL 902T09 ZYIEPYET
% €ELT  00Z'TS- 0s$ 00T'S$ 000'€S 0s /000'€S MHD 5Q78 1SND SHNL 8TT009 OETE09ET
% 96  0S6S 0$ |0S0'6ES 000'0S 0% |000'0%S$ L0 VIGOLSND SHIALL ZTT009 OETEQ9ET
% 916  S6v'9TS LSY'TS 61S'98Z5 TLY'VTES 0s$ TLY'PTES VS 1V1A01SND SHINL| 9TT009| OETE0IET
% O08IT S00'WTS- |08 1#0026$ |666°LLS 0% 666'LLS YOSIAQY 9 XddV SHW.L S80009 EETEZSET
% 00 2eT'Ts 05 10s 'S 0S TS 3QIV 9NS A1IVA SHINL ZTETOS OETEZSET
%  £SL  PET'TLS 0S 085795 p1Ls8s 0s PTLS8S ¥HJL 8NS ANYA SHWL TTET09 OETECSET
% 8%  I¥6'ZIS 0$ 650215 000's2s 0S 000'sZS 9NS WYL DNOTSHWL' 620109 SETETSET
% ETCIT 9SP'TS- 0$ l9sv'zes 000'0Z$ 0s 000'0¢S 3DIAY3S NI SHINL 060009 0ETEZSET
% 000T  TTI9'0TS- 0s T19'01S 0s 0S 0s S3AIV 13SI SHWL 680009 TETEEVET
% 966 SL9'TS 05 |PSE'ESHS 620'S5PS 000'S0TS 620'05€S 301V a3 TVI23dS SHNLL 550009 ZETEEVET
% O0€0T  P0S'TS- 0S |€8T'TSS 1089'6¥S 08 089'6%S AD3S IDNVAIND SIWHL TT0009 TZTELOET
%  T90T  |BIE'SS- 625 PTLTHTS PT9'EETS |0S YCI'EETS VS 19214310 SHWL TT0009 OZTELOET
% 00 955'LS 0$ 0% 965'LS 0$ 955'LS QV3H Ld3d IDNVAIND Z£0009 OTTEITET
%  CSYT  ¥19'0Z5- 0$ I€12'99% 665'GYS 0% 665'StS QV3H 1d30 SHNL ZZ0009 OTTECSET
%  L00T 8IS 0$ 958865 8ET'865 0S '8E1'865 VS YIDVYNVIA 35¥D SHIALL| E80009| TTTEEVET
% OTIT  SLE%- 0$ lsr2'es 00S'2$ 0s 00S'TS$ YOLNL a3 1vID3dS SHNL| 290009 OTTEEVET
%  900T S66'TS- 0% PIT'LEES 89TGEES 0s 89T'SEES YHDL D3dS QOW SHINL 650009 OTTEEVET
% 816 685'70TS 08 v60'SELYS €89'6E8'7S 00S'S6T$- £8T'GE0'SS AYVIVS SHIHIVIL 250009 OTTETEET
% TTT  S6hS 0$ vEL'TTS 6ET'TTS 05 6£2'TS dI1S A0 40Yd SHIALL, 00009 TTTELTET
% 9001  Z09%- |0S 687’665 L88'86S 0s £88'86S YOTISNNOI (AV SHINL 780009 OTTEITET
% L00T  LTTCS- 10 979'962S 60S'v6ZS 0$ 60S'¥6CS 3DNVAIND SHNL TLO0009| OTTEQTET
%  GST  09€'SLS 10S |OEB'ETS 061'685 0s 061'68S NVI¥YYEI1 SHINL 990009 OTTEETET
% Ov0T  |OPE'9TS- ¥9S'TS €99'0Z0S 888'S0tS 0s 888507 NI¥d LSSV/NIYd SHWL 050009 OTTELOET

TN e - SHIANL

QIN% o NGNS Qa3aN3dx3 130and T doy¥ddv NOILTEISIa — —

12d alA Q3SINTY TUNIDIYO NOLLRDS3d rao Y0
Y3INII LSOO A8 Hoday aimipuadxz Apapend GgAd
S20e/t/L sjooyas a1jqnd Ainqsyma]




TZ8'76$%- '808% T€7'828$ 8TZ'LELS 0$ 8TT'LELS SIV10L SILLITHLY
8L829%- 60v$ STL'SYT$ 9vZ'e8T$ 0$ 9vZ'€8T$ STV10L ONILVYIdO SIILITHLY
£v6'82$- '86€$ 915'785$ TL6'ESS$ 0$ 2L6'ess$ STVLOL AYVIVS SIILITHLY
%  9LST  TTSTIS L6€$ bTTTES 000'0Z$ 0$ 000'0¢$ SINADILITHLY L00TO9 09TEYTET
% ¥9TT  9vv'8Ts- 08 9v6'05$ 00s'zT$ 03 005°2Z$ $31ddNS SLYOdS THLY £20S09 OSTEYIET
% 798  SEO'TS 0$ S9v'9$ 00S'2$ 0$ 005'L$ $311ddNS YANIVYL THLY | 88ZTO9 OSTEYTET
% €107  160'L$- 453 6L0'PT$ 0003 0$ 000°2$ © S3IddNS I THLY £82T09 OST6YIET
% 0TZ  659'T$ 03 134 00128 03 00T'2$ SIONIYIINOD THLY | 98ZT09 OST6YIET
% SS9 85T'T$ 0s 88€'7S 9v9'e$ 0$ 9y9'e$ ddNS INIVIN Q74 THLY T£ZT09 OST6YTET
% ¥99  9Z0'v$ 0$ vL6'LS 000°2T$ 0$ 000'2T$ SANNOYD 14 HLY T/ZT09 O¥T609€T
% 9EFT  SBOETS- 0$ S80'ev$ 000°0€$ 0$ 000'0€$ IN3Y 30| AINDOH SAO8 190509 OVI6YTET
% L€ 00ST$ 0% 000°2$ 005'6$ 03 005'6$ ONIATIH 1d30 THLY ZSTO09  OYT6YTET
% Tv8  €16T$ 03 £80°0TS 0002T$ 03 000'2T$ ONOD3Y Ld30 THLY TSTO09 OYTEYTET
% VPI9E  T¥8ULS 0$ Tr8°0TS 000'€$ 0$ 000°€$ S1¥1303D110d 921009 OPTEYTET
% SETT  S8TL$ 08 S87'T9% 000'7S$ 0$ 000'7S$ LNOD SIVIDI440 INYD SZT009 OYT6YTET
% 00  00S$ 03 0$ 005$ 0$ 00S$ AYYIVS 440 INVD | STTO09 OET6YTET
%  8Ss  €28'STS 0% 596'6T$ 88L'SES 0 88L'SES 1S INSd LNA3 THLV 21009 OETEYTET
% LT 98LLT$ 03 8ST'v9$ 2L€'98$ 03 2LE'98$ NVIQOLSND JILITHLY 980009 OET6YTET
% 1.8  79T'es 0$ 8L0'Te$ oveE'sTs 0s OvE'STS DI¥31D 1d30 THLY TT0009 OTIEYTET
% 6TIT  vhL'YES 0$ 669'9Z€$ SS6'T62$ 0s SS6'T67$ HOVOD JILITHLY €2T009| OTTEYTET
% €0L  TLOLTS 0s ZSE0vS €Tv'LS$ 0s ge'LS$ Y¥3INIVYL 130 THLY ZZT009 OTTEYTET
% 6701  0L0'€S- 86€$ S97'60T$ £65'90T$ 03 €65'90T$ YOLD3HIA THLY H00009 OTTEYTET
SOILITHLY
R 'BLB'S8S" 0 BTL'TETS 0S8'91TS$ 0$ 0S8'9bT$ S1VL101 33LLIWINOD TO0HIS
B 258585~ 0$ 2sy'zzs 009'92ZT$ 0$ 009'9ZT$ STVLOL ONILYHIdO WINOD T00HIS
] sz$- 0s s22'0z$ 0sz'0z$ 0$ 0sZ'0z$ STVLOL AYVIVS ININOD T00HDS
%  T9TE  8SY'8ES- 0$ 85Y'55$ 000°2T$ 03 000'2T$ S3SNIdX3 TVDIQIN | $Z0TO9 09YBSOET
% LTYT  786% 03 87'€S 00€'2$ 0s 00€'Z$ 4NOD NINOD TOOHIS 600109 09YBSOET
% vv¥8  ESY'TS 0$ Ly8'L$ 00£6$ 0$ 00£'6$ $3NG WINOD TOOHIS £00T09 09+8SOET
% 6VIE  6Y1TS- 08 6YT'ES 1000'T$ 0$ 000'T$ ddNS WWOD TOOHDS | £20T09 0SYRSOET
% O0'€Ey  TIE'ETS- 0$ TIE0ES 000°2$ 0s 000'2$ DNISSIO0¥d 3AIVIIAIN 06TT09 Ovv8SOET
% TTIT  OTEETS 0$ 089'T$ 1000'ST$ 03 000'ST$ ONISLLYIAQY 0TOTO9 ObY8SOET
% 9LV 9TL'SES 0$ 92£'0TT$ 000'SL$ 0$ 000'5L$ $334 V931 900109 OY¥8SOET
%  L'96  8EWS 0$ €18'71$ |0ST'ETS 0$ 0SZ'ET$ VS ININOD TOOHIS 000009 OEYBSOET
9'90T  €9v$- 0$ E9V'LS l000’z$ 0s 000'2$ AJ3S ININOD TOOHDS | 620009 0ZY8SOET
J3LLIININOD TOOHIS
TBN% | fepemrrs | SNEERONT E[ELLE] 135an8d e d0o¥ddv e — w5 | sun
124 aLA Q3sInFY TYNIDIHO
YILNIO LSOO Ag Modey ainjipusdx3y Aiapend SZA4
se0z/e/L sjooyas a1jqnd Aingsymaj




'SOE'69S BYE'ES LLYTTITTS TET'WBT'IS 0S TET'VBI'TS S1V10O1 NOILVHISININGY
(EST'OTS- [0S £S8'EZTS |00L'ETTS 0s$ 00L'ETTS STVLOL ONILYYIdO NOILVYHLISININGY
_ 8SY'6LS |BYEES SZ9'L86S TEV'0LO'TS 0s$ TEV'0L0'TS STVLOL AHVIVS NOILVHLSININQY

%, 4 |€8E'8S l0s L1285 009'8S 0s 009°8S GWI3Y IOYIIN| TZOTO9 099890€T
%  vey  PIETIS 0% 989'85 000°0Z$ 03 000°02$ 19V1S0d| ZT0T09 099890€T
% €I TLOES 108 (T4 00S'€S 03 005‘€$ 2DNIYIANOD 440 SN 600109 099890ET
% sy SOTTS 0s S665 00Z'eS 108 00z'zs $3Na - 301440 SN8| L00T09 099890€T
% S8 9¥9S 0$ |¥SETS (000'€S 08 000'€$ $311ddNS AdOD - 321340 SNE| E00TO9 0S9890ET
% 0TL  T19TTS 0s$ 6£87$ 000'%S 0S 000'?$ S311ddNS 301440 SNE  000TO9 0S98I0ET
%  L06E  ¥91'9TS- 08 79T SES 000°6S [0S 000'6S AY3S LNOD - 301440 SN8  Z6TT09 0¥9I890ET
%  T61T  LLS'ES- 0s L1595 000'€S 0S 000'€$ INI¥d 301440 SSINISNE ETOTO9 OV9BI0ET
% 9Ty PST'ES l0$ 9yz'zs l0op's$ 0s$ 00v's$ ¥3id0D 440 SNE| ZOOTO9 O¥IBIOET
%  L'81T  996TH 0s$ 199t'SS 00s'2$ 0$ 005°ZS ¥34INOD LdNS 1SSV 600709 T99BSOET
%  L19C  BESS- 0S (BEE'TS 00S$ 0$ 00S$% ddnsS 301440 1dNS 1SSV 000T09, 0SLBSOET
% PIVT  TLOTS 0$ TS 000'SS 0% 000's$ IDN3YIINOD 1dNS' 600109 0998S0ET
%  TLIT 985 108 19855 00S$ 0% 00S$ SNOILAI¥DSENS| 800T09| 0998S0ET
% LTUT  LLT'0TS- 0$ LLT'TS '000'%TS 0S$ 000'¥T$ S3INA LdNS 1SSY/LdNS| £00T09' D99IYSDET
% 00 000°'sS 0s$ 0s$ 1000°5$ 08 000's$ 5311ddNS ¥LSNI IAIMINILSAS 9Z0T09| 0S98SOET
% €0 £66'TS 108 L0SS 100S'ZS 0s 005'2S $3I1ddNS AdOD - 1dNS ' £00T09 0S98SOET
% vITL  6TC'TS- 0$ 6e'rS 10002$ 0s$ 000'z$ $317ddNS 301440 LdNS 000109 0S98SOET
% 616  8ITTS 10$ TBLETS 000'ST$ 0s 000'STS AY3IS INOD - 1dNS 261109 0v98SOET
% 668 118% 0s$ 681°LS 000'8$ 0s 000°8$ ¥31d02 440 LdNS| ZOOTO9 O¥9I8SOET
% 44 060'95% 0s 162918 08€'TLS 0s$ 08€TLS VS NOILY1HOdSNYYL £00009 €TI8SOET
% 666 85 0s$ 188L'SS 96L'SS 0s$ 96£'6S$ 440 IDNIANILLY Z€E0009 ZT9I8SOET
%  €T0T  EELTS- ETA |6TE'LLS 088'SLS 0s$ 088'SLS S3IDYNOSIY NYINNH 022009 TT9890ET
%  07TOT  |9LE'TS- 09¢$ |L¥9'0LS 0ES'69S 0$ 0£5'69$ AVd 100V 440 SNd| £T0009 0Z98I0ET
%  8T70T  BESTS- 8vzs 18£0°£9% 88%'595 0$ 88%'59S T10YAVd 440 SN8  ZT0009| 0Z98I0ET
% 00 |00S'TS 0s$ |0$ 0051$ 0s 00S'T$ TIAVYHL YOI SNE| TZOTO9 0T9I8I0ET
% 008 100'1S 0s 666'€S 000s$ 0S 000'SS IDNVYUNSNI YO SNE, TTOT09 0T9IBIOET
%  v08  0LT'¥YS GL5$ 0SY'181S S62'92eS 0s 562'92ZS VS ¥OIA SNE 1SSY/YDIN SNE| €00009  OT9BI0ET
%  vTI0T  [800'T$- 8925 8€8'CLS 860'2LS 0s$ 860749 V214310 LdNS LSSV TE0009 TTISSOET
% 00 009°z$ 05 0% 009'2$ 0s$ 009°2S 7IAVYL LdNS 1SSV TZOTO9| TTI8SOET
%  TL0T  (Z0V'TIS- €19 STO'0LTS LZT'6STS 0s LTT'6STS 1dNs 1SSY Z00009 TT98SOET
%  ¥i6  OLT'ES [4:74 |SB6'LLS LBE'08S 0% |L6E'08S 1v2I¥310 LdNS| 0€E0009 TZ98SOET
%  6Y0T  T6Z'9S 0s$ T6L'eTS 00095 0S 0009 13IAVYL 1dNS TZOTO9 OTIBSOET
%  ®ET  [8STS 0 [ETYS 000°€$ 0s 000'€S JDONVHNSNI LdNS TTOTO9 OTIBSOET
% TE0T  LSO'LS- 608S 681'TETS ove'szes 0s ove'sees INIANILNI¥IdNS TOO009 OTISSOET

NOILLVYLSININQY

aisn% HSaATITAY SNHGFSNE aianidxa I35and CHIISNVHL dodddv e = b I
S 135an9 1IVAV JNYUEIADNI I kT vuL T NOILdI¥IS3a rao 50
YILNTD LSOO A9 uoday aimipuadxz Alivrend GZAd
sz0z/2/L sjooyas aljqnd Ainqsyma |




868'tYZS- '80S‘T9T$ 8TL6TL'YS BEE'9EQ'VS 000°0Z€$ 'BEE'ITEVS SIV101 NOILVLHOJSNVYL
‘6v9‘0zes- 80S'T9TS 6LY'SYI'VS 'BEE'98S'YS 000°0ZE$ 8E£°99Z'v$ _ |SIVLOL ONILY¥3dO NOLLYLIHOdSNYYL
_ 6Y2vTS- 0% sYZTvLS 000°05$ 0% 000°05$ 'STV.LOL AHVIVS NOILV.IHOJSNVYL
%  0L0T  €09'¥ZIS 986'9$ SSE'668'TS 8€L18LT$ 000°0Z€$ 8EL'TOV'TS 1510 40 LNO - SNYHL 8E0TO9 OV6SEVET
% 9701  S96'8T%- 509'52$ ov9'ZTLS 082'6TL$ 0$ 08Z'614$ 1510 NI - SNYHL| ZEOT09 OYESEVET
%  9'8YZ 9086 0$ 9/0'v9T$ 000'99% 0% 000'99% SSITINOH - SNVHL 6£0T09 T6STTET
%  000T  O6E$- L16'87T$ EPE'6T8'TS 0L8'LY6'TS 08 0L8'LY6'TS DY - SNVHL 9EOTO9 T68TTET
%  L0E  00VOTS 0$ 009'v$ 000STS$ 03$ 000'ST$ MS dINOD - SNVYL STOTO9 T¥6STIET
% 00 0sv$ 0% 0% 05v$ 0% 05$ $3NA-SNVHL £00T09 TY6STIET
% 699  Sp0'T$ 0% SS6'ES 000°9$ 0% 000'9$ SHIALL dItL 07314 NI¥dSNVYL 6/2T09 OV6STTET
% S8yl 6YT'vTS- 0% 6YT LS 000°05$ 0% 000°05$ SUOLINOW - SNYYL £6T009 OE68TTET
%  0€8 061°8$ 0% 0T8'TVS '000'05$ 0s 000'0S$ TOOHDS Y314V - SNVYL 0ZTT09 Ov68TTET
NOILVLYOdSNVYL
OVIET  TIETLS- TSE‘BES ZIE6YTTS 0SL'YTZ'TS 860°0VS- 8YZ'SST'TS STVLOL SIILSAS NOILVINHO4NI
9TZ'EES- 6£8°9€$ ovL'seLs €0v'62L$ 860°00%- T06°69L$ S1VLOL ONILVHIdO LSAS O4NI
L69°6€E$- wUY'TS TLS'ETSS LYE'S8YS 08 LYE'S8YS STVLOL AHVIVS LSAS O4NI _
885  6SETIS 0% Tv9'LTS 1000°0€$ 0% 000°0€$ _ ddNS ¥3dO INIVA HDIL £20T09 SSSSOTET
%  ©vOIT  €L6'TTS- 0% €/5'97T$ 009VTTS 00v°0vs- '000'SSTS $D 4340 INIVWN HD3L Z6TT09 S¥880TET
%  9veT  OEZ'SES €07$ €6T'8LTS 99T'EPTS 0% 99T EVTS VS HLO INIVAI HD3L 9T0009 TESSOTET
% vTOT  898'€$- LT0'TS €02'8L7% TR TEAS 0% ZSE‘SLTS VS O¥d LNIVA HO3L S00009 TTS80TET
% Ty 69EYTS 0$ 1€9% 000°ST$ ‘0$ 000'ST$ S ALIMND3S DAld Z6TT09 PY88OTET
% 168  ¥2S'9% 0% 9¥'€S$ 000'09% 0% 000°09% ddNS MS 1SNI 4415/aNLS £ZOT09 ¥S88OTET
% 67T  0/SVTS 0$ 0EYS 000°ST$ 0% 000'STS ddNS IMAH 1SNI HLO £Z0T09 £S880TET
% LT6v  19L'85% 0% 190'€L8 1000'STS 0% 000'ST$ $D IMAH LSNI HLO Z6TT09 Ev880TET
% 989  8ST'69% 0$ T¥80STS 000°022$ 0% 000°02Z$ ddNS IMAH 1SNI 44v1S/anLs £Z0TO9 ZSSBOTET
%  €8ST  PEZ'SITS- £98°9€$ 897'987$ 106202 0% 106°202% $ HJIL NINAY MS Z6TT09 OYSSOTET
% 98  ev1v$ 0% £58'S$ 000°0T$ 0$ 000°0T$ $31ddNS HJ3L NIWQY HOS | £Z0T09 TSSSOTET
% 000  6£9'GS- 0% 6£9'SS 0$ 0$ 0 QIN13Y T HO3L O4NI| TZOTO9 09880TET
% 00  000TS 0% 0% 000'Z$ 0% 000°2$ dX3 H1O HJ3L NIWGY MS 09TZ09 09880TET
% 8l  697°8€$ 453 129'9$ 706'vv$ 865- 000'5%$ $317ddNS SAS O4NI £Z0OT09| 0S880TET
% 600  865% 152$ EYARLTS 678'99% 0$ . |6T8'9gs Viva LNIONLS 610009 0Z8SOTET
SINALSAS NOILVINHOANI
EN 7 . — a3an3axa 13bang — dO¥ddv D — =5 | 58
12d ala a3sInIy TYNIOINO
YIINID L1SOD Ag Moday aimyipuadxy ALiariend GZA4
5202/t/L sjooyass aljqnd Ainqs)yma |




629'€6$ ZeeTTs 9vE'ZE9'8S L67'8EL'8S 000°0SL$ 162'886'LS S1V10L NOILVONA3 1VId3dS
9Z1'6€2$ LE6'0TS £502v1'9$ 9T1'Z6£'9% 000‘008$ 911°265's$ S1VLOL ONILYH3dO a3 J3dS
L6Y'SPTS- SBE'TS £62°06b'2$ I8T‘9vE‘T$ 000°0S$- 181'96€'Z$ SIVLOL AYVIVS a3 J3dS
% 7€  €60°061$ 0$ £02'6€65 967°67T'T$ 00050Z$- 967VEE'TS 12-9 AVA d35 8Nd - INL 8Y110D €ZTT09 ZHS6EVET
%  §96  [T6'LS 0% R 74543 LL6'002'TS 1000'50Z$ L16°S66'T$ TVILN3IQISTY - NOILINL AlYd £TTTO9 THSEEVET
% 88  OLEVTS 0$ 0TL'SL6'TS 1080'000Z$ 000°5¥9$ 080°SSE'T$ T2-9 AVA d3SJ118Nd - INLVIN 62TT09 OYS6EVET
% 000T TS 0$ 666'6$ 000°0T$ 000'09%- 000°0£$ INOJ-QOW HI8 a3 D3dS €80T09 ZYY6EVET
% 6971  S69'7$- 0s$ $69'21S 000°0T$ 000095~ 000°0£$ OMLSAS-TVA3 03 D3dS 80TTO9 TYi6EVET
%  8G0T  78EWS- 00€$ 7806 000's2$ 03$ 000'S£$ $31MddNS M/S LSNI a3dS £0ZT09 VSYEEPET
% 00Tl  [Z2'09%- 9vE'0TS ToY'8r6s 095'868% 0005223 095€29% A¥3S INOD-SIDIAYIS TIdNd | 860109 OFVEEVET
%  ¥'E€ST  T80'6%- €S 0S0'9Z$ 000°L1$ 0$ 000°LT$ ddnS - SIDIAY3S 1dNd  00TTO9 ESYEEVET
%  L79  960'LS 0$ Y06'TTS 000'6TS$ 0$ 000'6T$ ISSV @/1 A3 J3dS 662109 TSY6EVET
% 166 9% 0$ L6L'TS £08'T$ 0$ €08'T$ ¥31d0D 301440 A3 23dS Z0OT09 9IVY6EPET
%  vLT 597'8$ 0% SEL'TS 000°0T$ 0$ 000°0T$ 10-5311ddNS 03 J3dS 80T09 OSYEEVET
% 00  000%T$ 0s$ 0$ 000'vT$ 03 000'VT$ INOD HOdS/1d/10 £8TT09 vyW6EVET
%  S€9T  SO06'TS- 09Z$ SY9'vS 000°ES 0$ 000°€$ QN34 I9VITIA A3 D3dS T2ZOT09 TOVEEVET
%  0SL  0S9% 0% 0S6'T$ 0092$ 0% 0097 35V1S0d 03 D3dS ¢T0T09 TIVEEVET
% €665  P66'€S- 0% v6LVS 008$ 0$ 008% $3NA @3J3dS L00T09 09S6EVET
% 00 03 0s$ 000°0T3 000'0T$ 03$ 000°0T$ 3SUNN WIAINS 6€0009 YIVEEVET
%  TYET  198'S9%- 0$ 198SETS 000°02$ 0$ 000°0£$ VS 31V WAINS | 260009 OEV6EVET
% 00 0% 03 0% 0% 00005%- 000°05$ AYVIVS SIAIV ¥IHL GIN | SS0009  ZEVEEVET
%  6T0T  vv6'6s- 0% L9V'0ESS £25°025% 03 £25025$ ¥3IHL QOW YOIAVHIE ¥80T09 OTYEEVET
% 00 0% 0$ 1000°0Z$ 000°02$ 0% 000°0Z$ SIDIAYIS YIWINNS £L0Z009 OTYEEVET
%  9V0T  7Z6'05%- 0% 0T0'Z9T'TS 880TTT'TS 0% 880'TTT'TS S1SIdVYIHL 3AIMINILSAS 66T009 OTVEEVET
% 976  699'T% 0$ TEL'89S 007'0L$ 0$ 007°0L$ VS HOVIL WINNS | 650009 ETY6EVET
%  TYOT  SO8'TIS- LSS £88'S67$ SES'VRTS 0s$ SES'Y8TS TS T¥D1431D a3 J3dS TT0009| 0ZS6EVET
% 00 000'€$ 0$ 0$ 000°€$ 0% 000'€$ 1IAVYL AHIS ANLS ¥IQ TZOTO9 OTSEEVET
% 00  0SS'€S 0$ 03$ 0SS'E$ 0$ 0SS'ES IDNVHNSNI AY3S ANLS HIQ TTOTO9 OTSGEVET
% 0901  €8T'SIS 8765 0vE'L9Z$ 980'€57$ 0% 980€5Z$ VS Y1 1SSY/41Q a3 J3dS 0T0009 OTSEEVET
NOILVYONA3 1VIJ3dS
TNH | oo . a3anaaxa 13oand CHTENvEL d0uddv O =5 59
12d aia a3sIA3Y TYNIOINO
Y¥IINTD 1SOD Ag Modsy ainyipuadxy Alispiend GZAd
sz0e/z/L sjooyas aljgnd Ainqsymaj




T5t'9TS 09978$ 8TSEET'ES 0E9'FVZT'ES YL 8YTS 888°S66'ZS STVLOL SONNOYD 3 SONIATINE
901°LS$ £€9'789 266'8€V'TS TEL'BLS'TS ZuL'8ves 0666ZE'CS STVLOL ONILVY¥IdO SANYD 8 5A18
¥59°0€5- L20'7$ STS'v69$ 18686993 0$ 868'599$ 'STVLOL A¥VIVS SONYD 8 9018
% 00 0$ 0$ 0$ 08 000°Z%- 000'Z$ ¥311(4 SOAT99NIH ¥Z2T09 TSZ609ET
% 00 0 0s 0% 0$ 000'T$- 1000'T$ IDVHOLS dINDIDLNIN 9EZT09| 9VL609ET
% 00 0$ 0s 0$ 0$ 000°LTS- 000°4T$ ¥3d0 ALYISOATE ZTZT09 S¥L609€T
% 00 0% 0s 0$ 0 000°T$- 000°TS$ TOYINOD 1S3d 6TTT09 YP/609€ET
% 00 0$ 0$ 0s$ 0s 000'ST$- 000'ST$ 1N3INDINDI ONYDLNW VECTO9 EVLEOIET
%| 000T 6965 0s$ 6965 0s 00S'€S- |00S€$ ¥31SdININA STILN £92T09 2PL609€ET
% 00 10$ 0$ 0s 03 000ZTS- 000'71$ 1d35/43IM3S STILN €92T09 TrL609ET
% 00 108 0S 0$ 0S 009$- 1009 ¥3ILYM STILN 292109 TPZ609€ET
% 00 0s 0s 0$ |0$ 000°0€$- 000°0€$ ONINYI1D 13dHYD| EEZTO9 OvZ609€ET
% 00 0s$ 0s 03 0S 005'2TS- 005°2T$ WHOLINN| ETZT09 OVL609ET
% 000T BYZTS- 0$ 6YZ'TS 0$ 0S 03$ INIVIA ¥IWAINS SZ0009  OEL609ET
%  €08T  SIOWS 0$ |ST0'6S 000's$ 0$ 000'SS 30Vid3Y LNIWJINDI SEZT09 LS/609€T
% 00 000'91$ 0$ |08 000°9T$ 0 000°9T$ 710 8 S¥O JTJIHIA ZTETO9| ¥9L609€T
% 865 8v0'8s 0s$ TS6'TTS 000°02$ 0$ 000°0¢$ INIVIA 31DIHIA TZETO9 ¥9L609€T
%  61S 0ST'L¥S 8L¥S |TLETSS 000°00T$ 0% 000°00T$ $311ddNS DATELNIN| £20T09| ¥SLE09ET
% €VIT  Z86'E0TS- GST'28% 169T'0SLS ZYE'8TLS IYE'8LES 000'0SES 1JVYINOD DATELNIN Z6TT09 ¥7L609€ET
% 6V0T  SS¥'TS 0$ |S5%'2SS 0000S$ 05 000°05$ 10 NYIN3Y04 LNIVIN| LE0D09 OEL609€ET
% 0T 609'TTS 08 T6£'82S 000°0%S 0S 000°07$ 10 IDNINAINIVIN| 9E0009 OEL609ET
% LE0T  6¥5'9%- ¥59$ L8T'€8TS T6E'LLTS 0s$ Z6E'LLTS AYVIVS 1SSY/NINYY LNIVIN| ¥20009 OEL609€T
% 080T  TIO'ZES- \PLE'TS PYT'EZYS 905'86€$ 0s '905'86€$ AYYTYS IDNVNILNIVIA €20009 OELG09ET
%  6¢€8 9%9$ 0s$ [PSEES 000'tS 0s |000'?$ I9VITIW GNYDLNW| TZOTO9 £9/609ET
% VL LST'ETS 0$ (EV8'TS 000'SZS$ 0$ 000's2$ ddNS LNIVIA SONNOYD T/ZT09 €S/609€T
% €951  Z80'VIS- 0s |Z80'6€5 000°SZ$ 000'SES- '000'09% SOAS A3LIVYLNOD ANYOLNIN| TLZTO9  EVZ609€T
% 60T  69T'TS 0 TE'RTS 000°0Z$ 08 000'0Z$ ¥YINTIID SULN. ¥9ZTO9 TWLE0OIET
% T 980'9T$ 0$ v16'228 000'6€$ 0$ 0006€S INOHdITILSULN TIZT09 ZYL609ET
% 0021  LTP'9€S- 0s$ |£0€'8TCS 068°T8TS |0$ 068'181$ ¥3INID - ST118 233 STILN 09ZT09 TrL609ET
%  1's8 878'TYS 0$ |TLE'GETS 0021825 00Z'T€S 1000'052$ SHIALL - ST1IE 2313 ST1LN| 652109 TYL609€T
% €80T  SE6'0TS- 08 SE6'TYTS 000'ZETS 1000755- 000'¥8TS NNAM - S1118 D313 S1ILN 8S2T09 TV.L609€ET
% 00T  9¥8'9%- 0$ 19v8v0TS 000865 0% 000°86$ NVAY - STI8 D313 STILN £SCT09! ZvL609€T
% TEr BEV' VS 0$ TOEES 008°L$ 008°LS 0$ NYHVYL-51118 0313 STILN| 9SZT09 | TH/L609€ET
% 0S6C  8YE'STS- 0S |87E'8ES 000'ETS '000°€TS 0s$ LS HLYON - ST118 2313 S1ILN| SSZTO9, TWLE09ET
% €80T  9T6'tS- 0s 9T6'€9S$ 000'655 0s 000'65$ MY¥E H1V3H - S1118 2313 STILN | ¥STTO9 TvL609€ET
%  SELL  |S60'YTS- 0 |S60'7LS 000°09% 0s 000'09% ONIM3IA - ST118 2313 S11LN| ESTTO9 TrL609ET
% eV LET'BES 0 £9£'67% 000°89$ 000'Z8%- 000'0ST$ ¥3ILNID-SYD SOATEINLIH| ZSZT09 TIL609ET
%  6V0T  T6L'PS- 0s |26£T01$ 000°26S 00S°TTS 005'58% SHINL-SYD SOATEONLH | TSTT09 T9/609€T
% 616 6595 0$ Tr0's8S 005165 000'tZ$ 005'29% NNAM-SYD SOQT199NLIH 0SZT09 T9L609€T
% 186 wo'Ts |0$ 85£'98% 000°88$ 00S'0TS 00S°LLS NYAY-SVYD SDAT1E9NLH 62109 T9Z609€ET
% €99 69E'ES 05S T€9'9% 000°0T$ 000°0T$ 0s 1S HLYON-SYS SOA199NLH £¥ZT09 T9L609ET
%  L'S6 TL6'CS 0$ 679'59S 009'89% 009$ 000'89% HLV3H-SVD SOAT199NLIH 9¥ZT09 T9L609€T
%  SOIT  981'8S- 10$ 9E€'985 0ST'8LS 0ST'ETS 000°59$ ONIM3Q-SYD SOATEONLH | S¥ZT09 TIL609ET
%  LT0T  ETTS- 0 £9V2TS 0SZ'TTS 0sT'TTS 0% IDVYVYD INIVIA - SYD SOQTONIH 6€ZT09 T9L609€T
% 00 000'SSTS 0$ 0$ 000'SSTS 05 000'SST$ AY¥3S LNOD ONILVIH | ¥TZ109 Ty/Z609€T
%  T8LT  L6T'WLS 0% L62'69TS 00056$ 0s 000'565% $311ddNS TYIQOLSND | ZEZTO9 DSL609ET
SANNOYD B SONIATING
AIN% | femamaons SNEARONG G30NIdX3 135ana g do¥ddv s —
12d alA Q3ISIAIY 1 TYNIOINO e rao o0
YILNID LSOO A9 Moday ainyipuadxzy Apvyiend GZAd
sz0z/z/L sjooyas algnd Ainqsymaj




159'69% 1955T$ (STL'6ST'ES vZ6'DET'ES 568'98% 620VYT'ES STVLOL V31 IAIMINILSAS
SP9'SES 0$ 010'2ES S59°L9$ 0$ 1559293 S1Y.LOL SNILYHIdO IAIMINILSAS
'600'VES 955'T$ SOL'LTT'ES 69Z'E9T'ES 1568985 VLE'9LO'ES S1VLOL AYVIVS JAIMINILSAS _
% 00  000TS 0$ 0s$ 000'T$ 0s$ 000'TS YIVd3IY dINDI ANVE ¥EZTO9 Ov86TSET
% 00 |00S'2$ 0s$ 0% 005°2$ 0$ 005'2S SNVYLAaNvE TZTTO9 0¥86CSET
%  SIT 099% 0s ovTS 008$ |0s 008S 8IN 138 3SHNOD HLTVIH 0Z0T09 0986STET
% 8651  6ETS- 0 6£9% 0ov$ 0s$ 00v$ 8INI3¥ FONVHNSNI Q3N | TT0TO9 0986STET
% 679  010'SS |0$ £29's$ LE9'0TS 0s$ LEI'DTS S311ddNS HL1V3H 867109 0S86STET
% 698  0S8$ 0$ 059's$ 1005'9$ 0s$ 005'9% 1NOD H0120Q 881109 OY86STET
%  vTs | 0T0'8TS 0% 86L°61S 818'LES 0s$ 8I8'LES 13A3A 40¥d 3AIMLIIYISIA €Z0TO9 OF86LTET
% 0T vy8LS 05 195TS 000'8% 0s$ 000'8$ $311ddNS HOVOD HLV £0T009 0S868EET
% TSyZ  OT9TIS- 108 |0T9'61S 1000'8$ 0s$ 000°8$ LNIDONI INJANTHILIY| £20009 TT86SOET
% €19y  TT6IPIS- |0$ 726981 000°0t$ 0 000'0t$ YOvE ANg IAVITNIIS| 920009 TI86SOET
% 000T  [L9L'%$- 0$ L9L'VS 0$ 0$ 0s TOOHDS ¥IINID 1SND 1d| 961009 0E8609ET
%l 0T  988%- 0$ 988'ZT$ 1000'ZT$ 08 000'ZT$ TIVIA 3D1440Y3LNI 0ZT009 O£8609ET
% 0001 ¥S 10$ 650°0€ZS '€90°0€TS 0$ £90°0£CS ¥301440 ID4NOSIY  £80009 ZITETSET
% 866 S5 0s$ 6E9'0ES ¥69'0£$ 0s$ ¥69°0€$ YOLINOW ALIMND3S SHINL €£0009 ZITETSET
% 08T YO8'ES 0$ YO'ETS 1000°0T$ 03 0000T$ SISUNN ILNLHSANS TZ0009 OEBESTET
%  9€0T  9S6'8T$- 0s$ T98'SESS |£06°908S 0$ L06'908$ INTLSAS - STI¥YIVS ISHNN OV0009 OT86STET
%  TC0T | bPO'ES- 915$ |609'8FTS 0ZT'9YTS 0s 0ZT'9vTS S$IDIAYIS IDNVAIND 40 ¥IA 020009 OTB69TET
% 000T SL6S 0S |SL6S 0 0s$ 0$ AYVVS AVA Ad dS3 890009 0£86/TET
% 00  0L¥'TS 0S 08 (A 44 03$ 0Ly'ZS aN3dILS Gd AMISAS 00009 OTS6LTET
% 00 000'sS 0% 0s 000's$ 0s$ 000°SS ANVTVS SIILNIN | 6v0009 0T86S0ET
%  L'vS  88SELS 0s ZIv'91s 1000'0€$ 0s$ 000°0€$ AYVIVS SHOLNIN | 870009 0T86SOET
% ST0T  BEB'PS- 03 S98'861$ |LZ0'V6TS 0s$ LT0'V6TS HOV0D HO3L| E0T00S OT86VYET
% 6€0T  OL6'ES- 0s$ TE8'SOTS 298'T0TS 0$ 798'10TS HOVOD ADVH3LIT €0T009 OT860VET
%  S00T  00L'TS$- 05 TLE'TTES TL9°0TES 0s$ TL9'0TES HOV0D H1VIN €0T009 OTS6SEETL
% €101  SLY'TS- 0s$ 6I7'9ES vP6'EES 0s PY6EES 3dIV 41D AdOD 960009 TE86ZSET
% 106 |6£8°2LS 0 9£1'299% SLE'VELS 03 SL6'VELS HOVAL 113 GM LSAS ZS0009 OTS6EEET
% 00 678'8STS 0s 0S 678'8STS 568'985 VE6'TLS - IAYIASIY AYVTVS 00T009 ETB6SOET
%  TEOT  0£8'6%- 0b0'TS L6Y'TTES LOL'TOES 0$ L0L'TOES ¥O19341a WNTNJIYEND 0Z0009 YI86SOET
00 000'SS 0$ 0s$ 000s$ 0s$ 000's$ LIANDIN INVYD | SE0009 ZT86SOET
V31 3AIMINILSAS
[ E 1) 17— E—— Q3aNIdX3 139ang R dodddv SE— — J—
15d 135and 1IVAVY JNYEGWON] i AT SYIISNVHL ST NOILJI¥ISIa a0 540
YFLNID LSOO A9 Moday aimipuadxzy Apv)iend SZA-
szoz/e/L sjooyas 2liqnd Ainqsyma |




%00T  TS6VS  909°9ZES Z6Z'VE0'LSS  6YB'S9E'LSS | 6ET'SED'TS  OTL'OEE’9SS  100HIS TVLOL ANVHD
%00T | 03 0$ £09°60$ €09°6%$ 000°0vZ$-  €09'68L5 AVILNO WLIdvD 0685 E£0DESOT
%00T |  TIS6‘vS  9099ZES 689'V86'9SS 9IVT'ITELSS | 6ET'SLLTS  LOT'IPS'SSS  TVLOLONILYHIMO B AMVIVS
%00T TESTS 058‘867$ T6E'€69'9TS  ELL'V66'9TS PYT'86S'TS  6TS'96E'STS  1VLOL ONVYHO ONILVYIJO
%00T 0zZv‘zs  9SLLTS L6T'I6T'0VS ELV'TZEOVS S68°9LTS 8LS‘PYTOPS  WLOL GNVHO A¥VIVS
GhN  THSanaTIVAV  SNWGWONa o o SHTASNVAL Lt NOILdNS3a @0 o¥0

YIFLNTO 1SOO Ag Moday aimipuadx3 Apayend GZAd
sz0z/e/L sjooyas a1qnd Ainqsjyma]




Tewkshury Public Schools

School Business Manager
139 Pleasant Street

Tewksbury, MA 01876
David A. Libby
School Business Manager
Phone: 978 640 7800 (x5020)

dlibby@tewksbury.k12.ma.us

TO: The Tewksbury School Committee July 2, 2025
FROM: David Libby
RE: Circuit Breaker Revolving Financial Information FY25

The purpose of this memo is provide some additional information, which is supplemental to the School
Budget Report, included in the School Committee packet for July 9, 2025. The table below illustrates the
additional resources made available to fund the increased, unbudgeted needs of many students during
FY25. Although our Local Education Authority (LEA) budget shows a slight surplus in the Special
Education Cost Center, we SIGNIFICANTLY increased spending above the planned amount in Circuit
Breaker Revolving for these expenses.

As shown below:

Circuit Breaker Revolving
FY25 Budget Planned

Date Description Revenues Expenses Ending Balance
6/30/2024 Carryover Balance S 1,660,947
5/5/2024  FY25 Claim Budgeted $ 2,750,000

5/5/2024 QOriginal Budget $ 3,098,934
TOTALS S 4,410,947 $ 3,098,934 $ 1,312,013

FY25 ACTUAL (due to needs)
Date Description Revenues Expenses Ending Balance

6/30/2024 Carryover Balance S 1,660,947
8/30/2024  FY25 Claim ACTUAL S 4,224,265

5/20/2025  Extraordinary Relief ~ $ 538,770
FY25 EXPENDED $ 5,960,635
TOTALS $ 6,423,982 $ 5,960,635 $ 463,347
Revenues Expenses
Variance to Plan 5 2,013,035 $ 2,861,701

| felt it was important to include this information for the Committee to illustrate a more complete picture of
the expenditures in this area in support of our students.

by

\

. \ % ~
k; - 5 {/ )

wSla M E /A
q[ o u/\.--"z'ffh/" -x_.vt?/k__.--"
David A. LikLy
Screcd Business Manager

The Tewksbury Public Schools Community believes that our educational program will reflect our collective Vision of a Learner. Our consistent observable
growth among our students and staff will be evident in the achievement of academic, social, and emotional success in school and far beyond.



New Business



Tewksbury Public Schools

MEMORANDUM

To: Schoo! Committee Members

From: Brenda Theriault-Regan
Superintendent of Schools

Date: July 9, 2025
Re: Al Guidance

This Requires a Vote by the School Committee

Jason Stamp has developed guidance on the use of generative Al in the Tewksbury Public
Schools.

e He is seeking the consideration of the School Committee to accept the guidance
for official use in the Tewksbury Public Schools.



Tewksbury Public Schools

MEMORANDUM

To: School Committee Members

From: Brenda Theriault-Regan
Superintendent of Schools

Date: July9, 2025

Re: Non-Union Salaried Personnel

This Requires a Roll Call Vote by the School Committee

Dave Libby is requesting that the School Committee vote to approve a 3.5% salary
increase for all non-union salaried employees of the Tewksbury Public Schools



Tewkshury Public Schools

School Business Manager
139 Pleasant Street

Tewksbury, MA 01876

David A. Libby
School Business Manager
Phone: 978 640 7800 (x5020)

dlibby@tewksbury.k|2.ma.us

TO: The Tewksbury School Committee July 2, 2025
FROM: David Libby
RE: Non-Union Salaried Personnel

The purpose of this memo is to request that the School Committee vote to approve a 3.5% salary increase
for all non-union, salaried, “at will” employees of the Tewksbury Public Schools. Below is a summary of
the number of positions and amounts by Job Category for LEA (School Budget) and Grant or Revolving
funded positions.

CATEGORY LEA FUNDED GRANT/REVOLVING FUNDED
FTE FY25 SALARY | FY26 SALARY | INCREASE FTE | FY25 SALARY | FY26 SALARY | INCREASE
CENTRAL OFFICE STAFF 6 $ 374583 | S 387,699 | S 13,111 1 |S 645565 66,8155 2,259
MEDICAL/THERAPEUTIC STAFF 9 $ 620,151 | $ 641,856 | $ 21,705 0 | - S - S -
OPERATIONAL STAFF 5 $ 348,761 | $ 360,967 | $ 12,207 1 S 30,294 | S 31,355 | § 1,060
TOTALS 20 $ 1,343,500 | $ 1,390,523 | $ 47,023 2 $ 94,850 | $ 98,170 | $ 3,320
TOTAL ALL FUNDING SOURCES
FTE FY25 SALARY | FY26 SALARY | INCREASE
GRAND TOTAL 22 $ 1,438,351 | $ 1,488,693 | $ 50,342

Note that these figures do not include any newly hired staff or staff with individual contracts. These
figures are in line with the FY26 School Department Budget and represent similar increases given to
employees in collective bargaining agreements for fiscal year 2025-2026.

It is my recommendation that the School Committee approve these increases as described.
If approved, these increases will be effective July 1, 2025.

This requires a roli call vote.

\JQJ‘/WQ(’A z,z A

David A, Lbby
Schoeed Business Managar l

The Tewksbury Public Schools Community believes that our educational program will reflect our collective Vision of a Learner. Qur consistent observable
growth among our students and staff will be evident in the achievement of academic, social, and emotional success in school and far beyond.



Tewksbury Public Schools

MEMORANDUM

To: School Committee Members

From: Brenda Theriault-Regan
Superintendent of Schools

Date: July9, 2025
Re: MASC Appointment Voting Delegate

This Requires a Vote by the School Committee

In order for the Tewksbury School Committee to have a vote at the Massachusetts Association of
School Committees Annual Business Meeting, it is necessary that an official delegate be
designated. This requires a vote of the Committee.



MascC

Massachusetts Association of School Committees, Inc.

One McKinley Square, Boston, Massachusetts 02109
(617) 523-8454 fax: (617) 702-4111 WWW.masc.org Jason Fraser, President

Date:  March 2025
To: MASC member school committees, c¢/o superintendent of schools
Re: Voting delegate to annual business meeting
Date: DURING JOINT CONFERENCE. FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 14
Location: RESORT AND CONFERENCE CENTER AT HYANNIS, HYANNIS

FIRST NOTICE

In order for your school committee to have a vote at the annual business meeting of the Massachusetts Association of
School Committees, it is necessary that an official delegate be designated in pursuance of Article IX, Sec. 6 of the
By-Laws, as follows:

All members of the Association, and all members of school committees whick are active members of the Association, may attend and speak at any
meeting of the Association. Only active members shall be entitled to vote on the election of officers or on any other matter as to which members of the
Association shall have the right to vote and each active member shall have one vote. No later than seven days prior to each meeting of the Association
each active member shall, by written notice to the Executive Director, designate one of its members as its voting delegate and may by such notice des-
ignate one of its members as its alternate voting delegate. All ballots and other votes cast by an active member at any meeting of the Association shall
be cast by and only by its voting delegate or if the delegate be absent, by its alternate voting delegate if one shall have been designated.

PLEASE NOTE:

« An official delegate is only that delegate whose school committee has complied with annual dues regulations as spelled out in Article IV
of the MASC By-Laws.

- Deadline for receipt of delegate forms by the Executive Director for the 2025 annual meeting is October 20, 2025.

Official Delegate Form

For the school committee of

The official voting delegate is:

The alternate voting delegate is:

Signed

NOTE:
In order to register for the annual business meeting, delegates must send in this form in addition to the conference registration form.



Tewksbury Public Schools

MEMORANDUM

To: School Committee Members

From: Brenda Theriault-Regan
Superintendent of Schools

Date: July9, 2025
Re: Revised 2025-2026 Handbooks

This Requires a Vote by the School Committee

The Tewksbury Public Schools administrators have revised their handbooks for the 2025-2026
school year. They are seeking approval of the following revised handbooks:
e PK-4 Elementary (Dewing, Heath Brook, and Center Elementary)
John F. Ryan Elementary {Grades 5-6)
Wynn Middle School (Grades 7-8)
Tewksbury Memorial High School (Grades 9-12)

This requires a vote of the Committee.



Tewksbury Public Schools
139 Pleasant Street
Mrs. Alexis Bosworth Tewksbury, MA 01876
Principal, Dewing School (978) 640-7800

abosworth@tewksbury.k12.ma.us
Mrs. Terry Gerrish

Principal, Heath Brook School
taerrish@tewksbury.k12.ma.us

Mr. Jay Harding

Principal, Center Elementary School
jhardina@tewksbury.k12.ma.us

Date: May 16, 2025
To: Brenda Theriauilt-Regan, Superintendent

Re: 2025-2026 PK-4 Elementary Handbook

The proposed 2025-2026 Handbook notes the following revisions:

Table of Contents updated;

Pages: 1, 7, 31 Added new Principal name
Page 20-Updated Library Procedures
Page 9-Add Bicycle Guidelines

Page 12-Updated wording on plagiarism
Page 14- Change Extra Help wording

Page 37-Signature Page-Link - Updated Link

Page 9-Added Guidance on Al (Artificial Intelligence)
Page 11-Cell Phone Policy-added electronic devices

Page 37 Removed Interim from Special Education Director title

Celebrating Excellence

IR

Mo

il
L | Vi
55

Cover page - date and picture, updated Heath Brook Principal name

We submit this Elementary School Handbook and are available to answer any questions,

comments, or concerns that the Committee feels we need to address at this time.

Respectfully,

Terry Gerrish, Heath Brook Principal, Alexis Bosworth, Dewing Principal, Jay Harding, Center

Principal

The Tewksbury Public Schools Community believes that our educational program will reflect our collective
Vision of a Learner. Our consistent observable growth among our students and staff will be evident in the
achievement of academic, social, and emotional success in school and far beyond.



John F. Ryan School

To:  Brenda Regan, Superintendent

From: Judi Mclnnes, Principal
William Hart, Assistant Principal

Re: Ryan Student Handbook 2025-2026 Changes

The following are proposed changes to the John F. Ryan School Student Handbook for
the 2025-2026 school year:

The following will be updated to include:

Approved School/District Calendar

Updated Chain of Command

Updated Title IX

Updated Fee Schedule

Update Student Code of Conduct to align, when appropriate, for Grades 5-12

Changes and/or additions are in red text. Strikethroughs indicate text that will be
removed.

Page 1: School year updated throughout the document

Page 2: Student Handbook Sign-Off updated

Page 7: School Calendar and Chain of Communication links to be updated
Page 8: Addition of Notice of Student Records

Page 13: Update clubs (which vary from year to year)

Page 14: Personal Electronic Devices

Page 16: Artificial Intelligence (Al) Guidance

Page 19: Cell phones prohibited use on bus

Page 44: Remove previous language on Student Records



John S. Weir, Principal Victoria L. Cordeiro, Assistant Principal

Telephone: (978) 640-7846 Telephone: (978) 640-7846
Fax: (978) 640-7853 Fax: (978) 640-7853
jweir@tewksbury.k12.ma.us veordeiro@tewksbury.k12.ma.us

To: Superintendent Regan
From: John Weir, Principal of Wynn Middle School
Date: June 5, 2025

RE: Wynn Handbook Updates

Changes and additions are highlighted yellow. Strikethroughs indicate text that will be removed.

Some changes that we tried to be consistent with throughout were to add "guardian” to parent
sections, and changed "child" to student

Page 2: Updated by providing a list of required school year packet documents and the Droplet
process. Updated link to Free and Reduced Lunch form.

Page 2: Added PAC and town departments may take photos.

Page 6: Included the word “guardians”

Page 8: Update student opt-out form.

Page 8: Updated school calendar, chain of communication, and register periods
Page 8: Added WINGS Norms

Page 9: Not sure what the numbers 5131 mean in the policy. Updated to reflect "Student”
section of School Committee Policies

Page 10: Updated conferencing time from 6:00-8:00 to 5:30-7:30 p.m.
Page 11: Aligned Wynn with high school extra help expectations
Page 15: Added Artificial Intelligence Guidance

Page 15 and 16: Activities Fees and Activities will be edited to reflect 25-26



Page 17-20: Behavioral Expectations. In all cases changed the word "Penalties™ to
"Response”

Changed language under behavior expectations

o]

All students are subject to these behavioral expectations during the school day,
on the school bus, at any school function, or if actions outside of the school day
have an impact on the learning environment.

Moved these items from Level Il to Level | Infractions

o O

c O O O O

o}

Refusing to do work in class

Gum chewing

Disrespecting fellow student(s) or staff
Cheating

Misbehavior in the cafeteria and/or lunch recess (see Cafeteria Behavior and
Expectations)

Running and/or pushing in hallways

Failure to bring required materials to class
Swearing or inappropriate language
Improper use of the Internet
Inappropriate/unwarranted physical contact

Moved these items from Level lll to Level | Infractions

O

(¢]

Refusal to do school work in class as requested by teacher
Inappropriate physical contact

Added this to Level | Response

©)

O 0 0 O

Communication with Parent/Guardian
Teacher detention or team detention

Parent/Guardian Meeting
Collaborative Problem Solving/Problem Solving Conference/Restorative Chat

Responsive Classroom Techniques: Break lt, Fix it; Logical Consequence;
Space and Time

Moved these items from Level lll to Level ll infractions

(o]

o]

O O O O

©c O O O

o]

Direct insubordination following a warning by a staff member
Setting-off-fireerackers-er Using “stink bombs”/spray on school property
Improper behavior while on a field trip or while representing the school off school
property

Truancy from class

Physical and/or verbal abuse

Failure to report to detention or office when instructed by a teacher
Using/creating and displaying crude, offensive, vulgar, or obscene
gestures/images and/or language (verbal or written) on school property;
Recording, videotaping, or photographing anyone during the school day;
Violation of the Appropriate Use of Personal Electronic Devices Policy

Planning a fight during school that will occur after school or off school property
Threatening or resorting to physical violence (punching, hitting, kicking, tripping,
etc...)

Violation of the Acceptable Use Policy

Added this to Level Il Infraction



o Repeated Level | Infractions

o Refusal to provide name or provides a false name
¢ Consolidated the list of Level lll infractions
e Added this to Level lll Infraction

o Repeated Level |l Infractions

o Language Before:

m Possession or use of alcoholic or other controlled substance in school, on
the school bus, or at any school function;

m Possession or use of tobacco products in school, on school property or
on a school bus;

m Possessing, using and/or selling drugs in school, on school grounds, or at
any school function;

m Possession or use of drug/smoking paraphernalia and drug facsimiles;

o Language After

m Possession, use, or selling of illicit/prescription drugs and/or narcotics,
tobacco/nicotine products, alcoholic substances/beverages, drug/smoking
paraphernalia and drug facsimiles, or any other controlled substance
and/or any devices/packaging/containers to store these items.

o Language Before:

m Presence in school while intoxicated or under the influence of drugs or
alcohol;

o Language After:

m Presence in school under the influence of illicit/prescription drugs and/or
narcotics, tobacco/nicotine products, alcoholic substances/beverages,
drug/smoking paraphernalia and drug facsimiles, or any controlled
substance.

o Language Before
m Defacing, damaging or destroying school property;
o Language After
m Defacing, damaging or destroying school property (major)
e Added this to Level lll Infraction Response
o Restorative Justice Action Plan (3+ days)

m Restorative Justice Activities may include:
e Collaborative Problem Solving/Problem Solving
Conference/Restorative Chat
e Mandated Lessons/Projects responsive to behavior skill deficit
Mediation: Staff and Student/ Student and Student
e Responsive Classroom Techniques: Break It, Fix it; Logical
Consequence; Space and Time
o Emergency Removal
o Suspension
o Referral to Student Support Team

Page 17-20: Change language from detention to Reflection and Responsibility Time (RRT)

Page 22: Change time buses leave school from 2:05 to 1:55 and eliminate that bus switch must
be approved by transportation director



Page 32: Tardiness Policy changes
Page 33: Early arrival changes

Page 33: Remove - “ It has been our experience that students do not complete work while on
such vacations.”

Page 34: Update media weather sources
Page 38: Update Bike Policy
Page 43: Add language about Wynn's use of Yondr

Page 48: Added Student Obligation section



Tewksbury Memorial High School

To:  Brenda Theriault-Regan, Superintendent
Gail Johnson, Administrative Assistant

From: Andrew Long, Principal
Eileen Osborne, Assistant Principal
Sean O’Leary, Assistant Principal

Date:

Re: Proposed Changes to the TMHS Student Handbook for 2025-26

The following are proposed changes and/or updates to the TMHS Student Handbook

Draft 2025-26:
e Identify and correct any unintended typographical or grammatical errors

e Updated NOTICE REGARDING STUDENT RECORDS (page 3)
e Update letter from Principal Andrew Long (page 8)
e Updated TMHS Schedule page by adding WIN Block/Advisory Day (p.9)

e Update School/District Calendar (page 11)

e Update Student Activities information section (p. 15) with the new user fee
amounts for Athletics and for Clubs/Co-Curricular Activities

e Add under Academic Honesty: Additionally, any violation of the TMHS Artificial
Intelligence (Al) Guidance (page 45) may constitute a violation of the TMHS Academic
Honesty Expectations (page 19)

e Deleted: “All students must pass certain MCAS tests in order to graduate from any
public high school in Massac...” (page 21)

e Added: “The Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) requires states to
test students in reading, math..” (page 21)



Attendance Policy - School Absences (p.25) - change: may not exceed +6-wrexcused-6f
exeused-absenees to 12 unexcused absences in a full year course and change 8
uRexcused-or-excused-absences to 6 unexcused absences in a semester course.
Change the maximum number (12) to (6) of unexcused absences.

Clarify language regarding loss of Credit Due to Excessive Absences (page 25)

Classification of Absences (p. 26) Excused Absences - Change to: These types of
absences do not count toward the total number of unexcused absences for credit
purposes.

Unexcused Absences (p.26) Change to: This type of absence counts toward the total
number of accumulated unexcused absences for credit purposes.

Added: Massachusetts Helmet Law and TMHS Rider’s Safety Contract (p.41)

Deleted old Cell Phone and Electronic Device guidelines and add new guidelines
(pages 43-45)

Added: Artificial Intelligence (Al) Guidance - (pages 45-46)

Changed Level Infraction Penalties to Responses (pages 50-52)
Added: Physical attack to Level VI Infractions (page 52)



Executive
Session



TEWKSBURY SCHOOL COMMITTEE

Executive Session (Non-Public Session)
Wednesday, July 9, 2025

Center Elementary School

Music/Meeting Room, 1st Floor

139 Pleasant Street, Tewksbury, Massachusetts

Agenda
A. CALLTO ORDER
B. EXECUTIVE SESSION - Non-Public Session
e Approval of Executive Session Meeting Minutes:
o June 10, 2025

e Collective Bargaining pertaining to TTA (Teachers) CB Units

The School Committee will not reconvene in Open Session following the Executive
Session.

C. ADJOURNMENT



